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RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS (HK$'000)

Revenue

Profit before tax

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Total assets

Shareholders’ funds

Issued share capital

Net current assets

PER SHARE DATA

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)
Cash dividends per share (HK cents)
Net assets per share (HK$)

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Return on average shareholders’ funds (%)

Return on average total assets (%)
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2009

1,603,107
103,852

85,786
2,885,343
2,338,471

62,883
1,211,258

13.6
7.0
3.7

3.6
2.9

All share prices are expressed in Hong Kong dollars
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3.50
3.20
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2008

2,316,136
338974

317,829
3,118,939
2,380,863

62,623
1,334,758

50.8
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6.05

7
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Change

-31%
-69%

—73%

7%
2%

0%
9%
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-75%
-74%
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The “Financial Tsunami” which occurred in the second half of year
2008 posed extremely tough challenges to the global economy. The
sudden shrinkage of orders experienced by the manufacturing sector,
which was especially pronounced for export-oriented companies, drove
some companies to the brink of collapse. The impact of this financial
tsunami on the global economy is unprecedented in depth, breadth
and speed of deterioration — first among all that | have encountered in
over 50 years in the manufacturing industry.

The Group was also severely impacted by the financial tsunami with a
sharp decline in turnover in the second half of the financial year. After
analysing the overall operating environment and future uncertainties, the
management team further undertook a more prudent and conservative
operating strategy with additional measures to strengthen the Group’s
financial position and cash flow in order to ensure that the Group had
sufficient resources to ride out this historic challenge.

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group registered total turnover
of HK$1,603 million and profit attributable to equity holders of HK$86
million, a decline of 30.8% and 73.0% respectively as compared with
last financial year.

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009

TRERSTHE R T B AL — IR BT 214
SUPERMASTER Energy Saving Two-Platen Advanced Series Machine



WRIMBEEFEBERA » 2 HHET—
ETRBEERER BOORMHNEIA
REYERT  FHFERNZEEER
REDRWE - ZEBERTIBEEE
B AT R BRRREE A
RRNAFE - SEMKERSE -
EEMKERFIRMA AT E R
S FEEABBEAN _TTAFEHA
RERIOERREEBRCDESREZAT
B o B KBELMIER - SFE2IRES
HINVE 9 [ 0 5 B 1E30% i 7 B A P
TR ZR20%A £ - BREHRERNIKR
BERDXAERRRE -

E-ZTTNF  AGREHEELERNEHE
BEHMHRRREN—F - BEKEG S
REE - DERBEHRRHEREAL
TR N B BENBE R BT KT 5T
BR BREBREPEHSRELDD
Eme m5EREL  2XEBEZRN
—T-TFEFHOEER  MPEEE
EHERHEMBERA/R - FAAEED B
ENRERETETSNHERESZ® -
E-—FPRAPELEERTABLEER
WRAEEB RS - EREBEEE
AR DIBR KR8 -

BEEBSHEZS I  RELTF
RHEBEORLED  ELBETRS

During the past months, governments around the world had rolled out a
range of stimulus measures to rescue their tattered economies. Although
recent economic data show that the global recession has slowed down
by the end of the fourth quarter, with many governments also indicating
that their economic stimulus packages are starting to have early effects,
uncertainties are still abound in the global economy. Unemployment
is still persistently high in most countries, with unemployment in the
U.S. expected to rise to record highs since World War Il. Official data
released by the Chinese government in 2009 also revealed that total
exports and foreign direct investments (FDI) both dropped continuously
in consecutive months. Economists forecast that the reduction in global
FDI will exceed 30% and that of China might also exceed 20%, evidence
that global investment sentiment is still plagued by the negative business
environment.

The Group believes that 2009 will still be a difficult year. During this year,
the Group will continue to allocate major resources into R&D for large-
tonnage injection moulding machines and energy saving technologies,
and strive to provide customers with high-performance, good quality
products. Market forecasts generally predict that the global economy
will gradually rebound in the year 2010 at the earliest, while China’s
economy will recover more rapidly than other countries. Therefore, the
Group has already formulated plans to expand sales coverage in China,
in sync with China’s national economic development policy of moving
production bases further into the inlands, in order to take full advantage
of the opportunities brought about by the future economic rebound.

The Chen Hsong Group will continue to do our best and adhere to our
core beliefs in industrious and pragmatic approach throughout our 50
years’ of history. In this unprecedented economic downturn, we will
continue to sustain growth.
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AANERREEZR  HEZFREHEIH On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to give my heartfelt

EHEENMAERRE &P - #HERS - thanks to all shareholders of Chen Hsong Group, customers, suppliers,
EBBH TRBOTRILHADEDNE business partners, banks and loyal employees for their support over
T BARLHE! the years.

BE Chen CHIANG

*E Chairman

& —EThEFLA+IA Hong Kong, 14 July 2009

BEIZ R EIFARR
Exclusive Patented
Circular Platen

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009 6



ZETAYVREE  AfEEHFEZ
T —FOlIRMEBBLURE RN FEE
BER  EEBRERFTEARGEETR
DR ABEIBETL(ZTEENE B
¥23.16/8 T) KBS 6008 T(— T Z
N BE318ET) REAFREH A
T#30.8% % 73.0% - BIREARRBF A
¥13.60U( =TT )\F « BHES0.8(L) ©

—ERNFEEAKERIATFN
o TBRIRRENKEEREZ (&
Remewl E—TT N \FALATAR
h RREEEFEARNELLEERS
BOEESREREZREEE  E¥
ENERMREBRARAMMAAR  ME
ERMOZREBE S TRTENEERE
REREER EERREZT £ER
EREKEESNTRESN  BEEERUK

During the financial year of 2009, the Group registered its first
performance setback since the “911” terrorist attack incident in 2001,
with turnover and profit attributable to equity holders declining 30.8%
and 73.0% to HK$1,603 million (2008: HK$2,316 million) and HK$86
million (2008: HK$318 million) respectively. Basic earnings per share
is HK13.6 cents (2008: HK50.8 cents).

The financial year of 2009 is one of the most difficult operating
environments that the Group has ever encountered in its 50-year history.
The “Global Financial Tsunami”, which started in late September 2008,
pushed the economic and financial systems of many countries to the
brink of collapse in just a few months. The broadness and speed of
this crisis’ impacts are unprecedented, and global liquidity dried up
extremely rapidly causing severe hardships to operators in a broad range
of industries. Under such unprecedented circumstances, a company
has only its financial strength, quality of management and quickness of
response to rely upon.

BB EBERT M
SUPERMASTER Energy Saving All Electric Machine
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The Group immediately experienced the drastic drop of order intake
since the early outbreak of the financial tsunami, with most customers
halting all capital investment activities — even customers who had already
placed orders called in to delay deliveries. After internal discussions,
the Group’s management believed, at the time, that the financial
crisis would intensify and, with future uncertainties abound, decided
to implement a series of emergency measures. These measures were
introduced to manage liquidity in order to preserve enough cash for the
Group to weather through the current economic shock. They included:

1. Launched a fundamental review of all operational plans and
expense budgets; immediate adjustments were made according to
the latest market conditions.

2. Round-the-clock tightened monitoring and updating of customer
operating conditions in order to ensure appropriate and prompt
response.

3. Revised credit approval procedures and strengthened review
policies of credit terms based on the conditions of different markets.

4. Focused on inventory reduction as the primary objective in order to
maximize cash flow.

5. Reviewed human resource requirements, kept employees and staff
fully updated on the latest conditions via large-scale communication
sessions, and implemented new measures to optimize labour
structure — including flexible working hours. These measures were
intended to allow all employees to stand together with the company
against the difficult business environment.
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Management's Discussion & Analysis
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The Group’s financial status in the second half of the financial year
reflects the immediate results of these emergency measures, for
instance:

1. Accounts receivable dropped from HK$864 million at the end of
the first half of the financial year to HK$516 million at the year-
end, a decline of 40%. This decline is 41% when compared to
the same period of last year, signifying much reduced exposure to
receivables risk.

2. Inventory levels dropped from HK$827 million at the end of the first
half to HK$704 million at the year-end, a decline of 15%. Finished
goods inventory rose from 26% at the end of the first half to 31%
at the year-end, indicating that more raw materials inventory was
converted into sellable liquid stock, which in turn helped improve
the liquidity of the Group’s inventory assets.

3. Cash position rose from HK$320 million at the end of the first half
to HK$446 million at the year-end, an increase of 39%. At the same
time, bank borrowings and accounts payable dropped by HK$147
million and HK$180 million respectively. After these improvements,
the Group ended this financial year with a net cash balance of
HK$408 million — a substantial increase over the HK$135 million at
the end of the first half.

4. The Group’s major operating expenses, such as administrative

costs, labour costs etc., all registered significant reductions, which
helped the Group’s cash flow position.

9 MR AT FRA F] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Market Analysis

Breakdown of turnover, based on the location of customers, for the year
ended 31 March 2009 is as follows:

2009 2008

(BEEET) (E¥EZET)
B Customer Location (HK$ million) (HK$ million) ~ Change
A B R B K B Mainland China and Hong Kong 981 1,589 -38%
=y Taiwan 189 257 -26%
HAb/GINE K Other overseas countries 433 470 8%
1,603 2,316 -31%
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During this financial year, the China market went from one extreme
to another. Firstly, the Chinese Government tightened monetary policy
during the first half, resulting in substantial increases in the demand
of credit from customers. At the same time, the new “Labour Contract
Law” went into effect in 2008 — a regulation that many manufacturing
companies believed would add to their labour costs, and which reduced
their urge to purchase new machines.

During the second half, China was similarly heavily affected by the
global financial tsunami in the same way as many other countries, with
its exports processing sector being completely devastated, especially
for manufacturing companies exporting to European and U.S.
markets. According to published national statistics, China witnessed
an unprecedented decline in exports for seven consecutive months
since November 2008, the first month that a decline was recorded. In
addition, year-on-year decline in exports further deepened for March
and April 2009, with May 2009 being a unique month in which exports
declined year-on-year as well as month-on-month. All these are strong
proof that the economic shock caused by the current financial crisis has
persisted in the second half.

10
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During the same period, China’s Foreign Direct Investments (“FDI”) also
registered eight consecutive months of decline. Official and Industry
forecasts both indicated that global FDI this year would decline by over
30%, with those for China declining by over 20%.

Financially weaker small and medium-sized companies (SME’s) are the
prime victims of the financial tsunami. From the start, many banks had
focused on SME’s to tighten credit, breaking those companies’ liquidity
life-line and generally made it extremely difficult for them to continue
operations. According to market intelligence, in Guangdong province
alone over 10,000 SME’s went out of business after October 2008 - this
trend was particularly pronounced for the toys and electrical appliances
export processing sectors. Similarly, export processing companies and
automotive component suppliers in the cities of Shanghai, Kunshan
and Suzhou in Eastern China were dealt an equally hefty blow, with
orders in the electronics export sector (dominated by Taiwanese funded
companies) experiencing a sharp decline. These industry sectors had
all been the Group’s core markets, which was the main reason why
the Group immediately sensed danger in market conditions during the
second half of the financial year.

EM120-SVP

S BRPRIREETRL T 2B
EASYMASTER Energy Saving Servo Drive Machine
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The Taiwan domestic market and international markets had been strong-
growth regions for the first half. A number of large customers expanded
capacity in Taiwan during the first half, resulting in significant business
growth. During the second half and the onset of the financial tsunami,
however, Taiwan became a disaster zone with sales turnover declining
by 78% due to its structural reliance on exports to the European and
U.S. markets.

Turnover in international markets in the first part of second half year
was buffered by traditionally longer delivery lead times and the common
practice of secured Letters of Credit (L/C's) for payment, but the
impacts of the financial crisis could be felt later from sharply-declining
new orders. The global financial tsunami caused the credit market in
many developing countries to shrink dangerously and their currencies
to rapidly depreciate against the U.S. Dollar and Renminbi (some
countries in Eastern Europe and South America saw depreciation up to
20% - 40%), dealing a serious blow to their imports purchasing power.
As a result, the Group’s international market sales turnover dropped to
low level unseen in many years during the fourth quarter (January to
March 2009).

Throughout many years, the Group has been persistent in its core
direction of investing in R&D to develop new technologies for use in
new product offerings. Even amid the global financial tsunami, the
Group still maintains adequate resources and investments for key R&D
projects, namely ultra-large-tonnage injection moulding machines and
advanced energy-saving technologies.

iChen Wireless /\ SRIESHBEERS
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The Group launched a number of new products during the last
Chinaplas 2009 exhibition show which were met with favourable market
acceptance. Among those exhibited included the JM650-SVP large-
tonnage injection moulding machine with servo-drive and up to 70%+
energy-saving capability. Many customers who came and saw this new
product were lured by its superior operating cost dynamics to consider
replacing their existing old machines, and thus turned into new orders
after the show. The SM250-TS In-Mould Labelling system developed
by the Group’s Taiwan subsidiary was a fully-automatic packaging
production line for plastic containers with running speed less than
three seconds per dry cycle — a perfect one-stop solution for customers
requiring high-speed manufacturing of packaging containers. The
newly launched SM-50P All-Electric injection moulding machine is a
stunner in looks as well as superb performance, suitable for demanding
customer segments in Europe and North America. It will become the
Group’s primary high-end product offering for the international markets
when they recover in the future. The launch of these new products
amid such economic turmoil further indicated that R&D is still one of
the Group’s core competitive advantages.

: » JETMASTER

RHAREB AT E B
JETMASTER Energy Saving Servo Drive Large Machine
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As at 31 March 2009, the Group had net current assets of HK$1,211
million (2008: HK$1,335 million), which represented a 9% decrease
over last year. Included in the net current assets were the bank balances
of HK$446 million (2008: HK$362 million), an increase of HK$84
million over last year, and the bank borrowings of HK$38 million (2008:
HK$28 million), an increase of HK$10 million. The bank borrowings
were of short-term bank loans with floating interest rates, mainly used
as working capital for the subsidiaries of the Group.

It is the policy of the Group to adopt a consistently prudent financial
management strategy, sufficient liquidity is maintained with appropriate
levels of borrowings to meet the funding requirements of the Group’s
investments and operations.

The Group adopts a prudent and centralized approach in managing
its funding. Funds, primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars, U.S.
dollars and Renminbi, are normally placed with banks in short or
medium term deposits for the working capital of the Group.

For foreign exchange risk management, the Group manages to reduce
the risk exposure on its foreign currencies by making appropriate levels
of borrowings in the corresponding currencies. As at 31 March 2009,
the Group had total foreign currency borrowings equivalent to HK$38
million (2008: HK$28 million). The Group, from time to time, assesses
the risk exposure on certain volatile foreign currencies and has it
covered by forward exchange contracts to minimize the risk.
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As at 31 March 2009, the Group, excluding its associates, had
approximately 2,500 (2008: 3,700) full-time employees. The Group
offers good remuneration and welfare packages to its employees and
maintains market-competitive pay levels. Employee promotions and pay
are rewarded on individual as well as the results performance of the
Group. Share options of the Company are granted to selected employees
of the Group for rewarding and retaining talents.

The Group conducted regular programmes, including comprehensive
educational and professional training, and social activities counselling,
to its employees to enhance staff quality, standards of professional
knowledge and teamwork spirit.

Many countries introduced emergency economic measures in response
tothe global financial tsunami. Latest published economic data indicated
that the magnitude of economic recession has subsided. However,
many uncertainties still exist, such as persistently high unemployment
in many countries, weak commodity prices, ballooning government
fiscal deficits, fluctuating currency exchange rates etc.. A consensus
among economists and financiers appears to be that 2009 will remain

challenging, while the most optimistic estimate of a global recovery will
not happen until 2010.

RHEMRED LT LR
JETMASTER Energy Saving Ai Servo Drive Machine
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The Group believes that China will be one of the first countries to recover.
The Chinese Government has been acting strong to expand domestic
consumption with a RMB4 trillion economic stimulus package. The
Central Government's resolve in maintaining steady economic growth
is also obvious from a series of measures implemented to catalyze an
economic recovery, such as large reductions in interest rate, increased
bank lending, increased exports tax rebates, and numerous assistance
packages to key manufacturing industries (e.g. electrical appliances,
automotive, infrastructure, mining, etc.).

As long as China continues in its current relaxed monetary policy and
assistance to industries, the Group believes that its customers’ demand
for injection moulding machines will rebound to more normal levels.
The Group has completed a large reorganization program and has
started on a new marketing strategy during the past six months. It is
now well positioned financially not only to successfully assail through
the financial crisis but also to capture future opportunities when the
market rebounds.
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Executive Directors

Chen CHIANG GBM, OBE, DEng, DSc, DSSc, DBA, FHKIE,

aged 85

Chairman

Dr. Chiang was appointed a Director of the Company in 1991. He is
the Chairman of the Group and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited,
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Dr. Chiang founded the
Group and The Chiang Chen Industrial Charity Foundation. He was
appointed Hong Kong Affairs Advisor and a member of the Advisory
Committee of College of Management, National Chung Cheng
University. Dr. Chiang is also the Economy Advisor of Shandong
Provincial People’s Government and the Honorary President of
The Research Centre for Market — Economy of Peking University.
In addition, Dr. Chiang is the Honorary Chairman of the Federation
of Hong Kong Machinery and Metal Industries and the Hong Kong
Electrical Appliances Manufacturers Association. Dr. Chiang founded
Chiang Chen Industrial Institute situated at his hometown of Heze
City of Shandong Province in 1999. He is the father of Ms. Lai Yuen
CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG.

Lai Yuen CHIANG BA, aged 43

Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Chiang joined the Group in 1988 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2000. She is also the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and is responsible for the management and business
development of the Group. Ms. Chiang holds directorships in
various subsidiaries of the Company and is a Director of Chen Hsong
Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
She holds a bachelor degree of Arts from Wellesley College, U.S.A.
and has extensive experience in production management, sales
and marketing. Ms. Chiang is a standing committee member of the
Shenzhen Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Vice-
Chairman of the Shenzhen Federation of Industrial Economics and
Vice-President of China Shenzhen Machinery Association. She is also
the Vice-President of The Toys Manufacturers’ Association of Hong
Kong, a General Committee Member of the Chinese Manufacturers’
Association of Hong Kong, a member of the Standing Committee
on Disciplined Services Salaries and Conditions of Service of The
Government of the Hong Kong SAR, a member of the Standing
Committee on Directorate Salaries and Conditions of Service of The
Government of the Hong Kong SAR, a member of the Council of
both The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and The
Open University of Hong Kong. Ms. Chiang was awarded the “Young
Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries in 2004. She is Dr. Chen CHIANG’s daughter and Mr. Chi
Kin CHIANG'’s sister.
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Chi Kin CHIANG BSc, aged 42

Mr. Chiang joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2003. He was also appointed President — Group
Manufacturing with effect from 1 May 2009 responsible for the
manufacturing function of the Group. Mr. Chiang holds a bachelor
degree of Applied Science in Industrial Design from Rochester Institute
of Technology, New York. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chiang had
six years’ experience in industrial design, working for a multinational
company in the U.S.A.. Mr. Chiang is a member of the Guangdong
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Vice President of China Plastics Machinery Industry Association and
Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors and a director of Hong Kong
United Youth Association. He is Dr. Chen CHIANG’s son and Ms. Lai
Yuen CHIANG's brother.

Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG VBA, BSc, aged 42

Mr. Chung joined the Group in 2001 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2003. He also holds the position of Group Chief
Officer — Strategy, Sales and Marketing. Mr. Chung holds a bachelor
degree of Science in Electrical Engineering & Computer Science from
the University of California, Berkeley. He also holds an MBA degree
in Finance from Columbia University, New York City, U.S.A.. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chung had more than 14 years’ experience in
sales and marketing, management consultancy, financial analysis and
information technology.

Sam Hon Wah NG BSc Econ, MBA, MAF, DBA, ACA, FCPA,

aged 49

Mr. Ng joined the Group in 2002 and was appointed a Director in 2003.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng was engaged in financial management
with several multinational companies. He has extensive cross-border
financial management, mergers and acquisitions, and corporate
development experience. Mr. Ng is responsible for managing special
projects and corporate governance of the Group. He holds an honour
degree in Economics at the London School of Economics (University of
London), a master degree of Applied Finance at the Macquarie University
(Australia), an MBA degree from The City University Business School
(England) and a Doctor of Business Administration degree from the
University of Newcastle (Australia). Mr. Ng is a Chartered Accountant,
an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales, and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Johnson Chin Kwang TAN BA, BSSc, aged 48

Mr. Tan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2001. He is
currently a Director of IB Partners Pte Limited. Mr. Tan has over
20 years experience in investment banking based out of New York,
Hong Kong and Singapore. He had held various roles with leading
financial institutions including JP Morgan, UBS Warburg, Macquarie
and BNP Paribas Capital (Singapore) Limited where he was the Chief
Executive Officer and regional head for its South East Asia corporate
finance business. He has advised major corporations and government
authorities across the region. During the period from 9 September 2005
to 7 November 2006, Mr. Tan was an independent director of Pacific
Internet Limited, a company listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market. Mr.
Tan graduated from the National University of Singapore and was a
recipient of the Lim Tay Boh gold medal and NUS Economics Society
Book Prize.

Anish LALVANI BSc, MBA, FHKIoD,

aged 43

Mr. Lalvani was appointed a Director of the Company in 2002. He is
Chairman of Euro Suisse International Limited which has business
interests in Hong Kong, Europe, the Former Soviet Union, Africa and
the Middle East. He has lived and worked in the U.K., U.S.A., India and
Hong Kong and holds an MBA degree from the University of San Diego.
Mr. Lalvani has extensive marketing experience in the emerging markets
and an in-depth knowledge of electrical appliances manufacturers in
China — many of whom have in house moulding facilities. He is the
former Chairman for both the North Asia Region and the Hong Kong
Chapter of the Young Presidents’ Organization. Mr. Lalvani is a member
of Hong Kong Trade Development Council's Electronics/Electrical
Appliances Industry Advisory Committee, a committee member of
the Asian Cultural Council, a Director of Harvard Business School
Association of Hong Kong Limited and a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute
of Directors.
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Bernard Charnwut CHAN GBS, JP, aged 44

Mr. Chan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2004. He is a
graduate of Pomona College in California, U.S.A.. He has been elected a
Deputy to the Chinese National People’s Congress since January 2008.
He is a former member of both the Executive Council and the Legislative
Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Chan is
also a member of the Greater Pearl River Delta Business Council. Mr.
Chan is the Chairman of the Council for Sustainable Development, the
Antiquities Advisory Board, the Advisory Committee on Revitalisation of
Historic Buildings, the Council of Lingnan University and Hong Kong-
Thailand Business Council. In addition, he serves as the Chairperson
of The Hong Kong Council of Social Service and the Vice Chairman of
the Oxfam Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is currently an Executive Director and
the President of both Asia Financial Holdings Ltd. and Asia Insurance
Company Limited and an advisor of Bangkok Bank Public Company
Limited, Hong Kong Branch. He is a Non-executive Director of City
e-Solutions Limited and New Heritage Holdings Ltd., an Independent
Non-executive Director of each of China Resources Enterprise, Limited,
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited and Yau Lee Holdings Limited,
all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Chan since April 2007 has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of Wing Lung Bank Limited, which was delisted
from the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2009.

Michael Tze Hau LEE BA, MBA, aged 48

Mr. Lee was appointed a Director of the Company in 2008. He is the
Managing Director of MAP Capital Limited, an investment management
company. Prior to co-founding MAP Capital Limited, he was a Managing
Director of Hysan Development Company Limited. Mr. Lee started
his career in the investment industry in 1987 and has since held
senior management positions in multinational investment companies
including Indosuez Asia Investment Services Limited and Lloyd
George Management. He also co-founded Asia Strategic Investment
Management Limited in 1995. He was educated in the United States of
America and holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from Bowdoin College and
a Master of Business Administration Degree from Boston University. Mr.
Lee was a member of each of the Main Board and Growth Enterprise
Market Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
He is an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited and Tai Ping Carpets International Limited; and a
Steward of Hong Kong Jockey Club.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company recognizes the
importance of good corporate governance practices in safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders and enhancing the performance of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Board is committed
to maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate governance
practices.

Except as disclosed in this Report, the Company has complied with
the code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) during the financial year ended
31 March 2009.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. In light of the amendments to
the Model Code which took effect from 1 January 2009 and further
modification thereto which took effect from 1 April 2009, the Board
accordingly updated the Code to bring it in line with the amended code
provisions of the CG Code with effect from 1 April 2009.

The Company, after having made specific enquiries of all directors,
confirms that all directors have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Code and the Model Code throughout the financial year
ended 31 March 2009.
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Board of Directors

At the date of this report, the Board consists of five executive directors
and four independent non-executive directors:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Chen CHIANG, GBM (Chairman)

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG

Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
(appointed on 1 May 2008)

Note:
Dr. Chen CHIANG (Chairman) is the father of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief
Executive Officer) and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (Executive Director).

Under the second limb of Code Provision A.4.2, every director should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The directors of the Company (except the Chairman of the Company)
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
as the Chen Hsong Holdings Limited Company Act, 1991 of Bermuda
provides that the chairman and managing director of the Company are
not required to retire by rotation.
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The primary responsibilities of the Board are to establish the Group’s
vision, strategic direction, general policies and strategic business
plans; to monitor and control the operating and financial performance
of the Group; to implement the best corporate governance practices
throughout the Group; and to set appropriate policies to assess and
manage risks in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Group.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to review the overall
strategies and the operating and financial performance of the Group.
The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda for
Board meetings in consultation with all directors. Notice of at least 14
days is given to all directors for all regular Board meetings, and directors
can include matters for discussion in the agenda. The agenda and
accompanying Board papers for regular Board meetings are sent out
in full package to all directors at least 3 days before the date of a Board
meeting. Draft minutes of all regular Board meetings are circulated to all
directors for comments prior to their confirmation. Confirmed minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary. All directors have
access to Board papers and related materials and may, in appropriate
circumstances, seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense.

The Board has delegated the daily operations of the Company to
Management comprising all executive directors, management staff, and
operating heads of different business units. The main responsibilities
of Management are to implement the strategies and business plans
set by the Board and to manage the Group’s business operations in
accordance with the policies and directives of the Board.

The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage on
directors’ and officers’ liabilities arising from the Group’s business. The
Management reviews the extent of insurance coverage on an annual
basis.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Each independent non-executive director of the Company has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of not more
than three years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company
is subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considered all such directors are
independent.

Meetings and Attendance

During this financial year, four regular Board meetings were held at
approximately quarterly intervals, and the attendance record of each
director is as follows:

HERE,

BEXE

Number of
meeting HER
BEEnA Name of director attended/held  Attendance rate
BE Chen CHIANG 4/4 100%
R Lai Yuen CHIANG 4/4 100%
BEER Chi Kin CHIANG 4/4 100%
EHR Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG 4/4 100%
REHE Sam Hon Wah NG 4/4 100%
PREE Johnson Chin Kwang TAN 4/4 100%
Anish LALVANI Anish LALVANI 4/4 100%
BRE B Bernard Charnwut CHAN 4/4 100%
FFE Michael Tze Hau LEE 4/4 100%

(RN—ZFZT/\FAA—HEZRE)

(appointed on 1 May 2008)
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Board is Dr. Chen CHIANG, and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company is Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG. The roles
of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are defined clearly
to ensure their independence, accountability and responsibility with
respect to the management of the Company.

The Chairman focuses on overall corporate development and high-level
strategic directions of the Group, provides leadership to the Board, and
oversees the efficient functioning of the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for managing the Group’s
business operations, and advising the Board of business strategies and
their implementations.

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee was established on 9 May 2005. At
the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Bernard Charnwut
CHAN, Mr. Anish LALVANI and Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE (appointed on
1 May 2008), and the Chief Executive Officer, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG.
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN is the Committee Chairman. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the Company’s
website.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for
the remuneration of directors and senior management. It also reviews
and determines the remuneration packages of executive directors
and senior management of the Group. The Remuneration Committee
considers factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the executive directors and senior
management.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during this financial
year. The attendance record of each member is as follows:

ERg,

BERE

Number of
meeting HER
#E Name attended/held  Attendance rate
BRE R Bernard Charnwut CHAN 1/1 100%
Anish LALVANI Anish LALVANI 1/1 100%
BB Lai Yuen CHIANG 1/1 100%
MFE Michael Tze Hau LEE 11 100%

(R—ZTT)\FAA—HEZRE)

(appointed on 1 May 2008)
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For the year ended 31 March 2009, the Remuneration Committee had
reviewed and approved matters relating to the remuneration packages
of the executive directors and management staff after assessing the
individual performance and in consultation with the proposals of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. No member took part in
voting about his/her own remuneration at the meeting.

Nomination of Directors

The Company does not have a Nomination Committee. The directors
participate in the assessment and selection of individuals nominated
for directorships. Individuals, suitably qualified and who can contribute
to the performance of the Company are identified and nominated to
the Board. The selection criteria for Board membership includes
professional expertise, high standards of relevant skills, high levels
of integrity and business ethics, and demonstrable competence as
required by a director of a listed company. A candidate to be appointed
as an independent non-executive director must also satisfy the
independence criteria set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. During
this financial year, the Company had passed a written resolution of the
Board in relation to the appointment of Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE as an
independent non-executive director of the Company with effect from
1 May 2008.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 28 November 1998. At the
date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Anish LALVANI, Mr. Johnson Chin
Kwang TAN, Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN and Mr. Michael Tze Hau
LEE (appointed on 1 May 2008). Mr. Anish LALVANI is the Committee
Chairman.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee follow the guidelines
set out by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
have been updated with effect from 1 April 2009 to comply with the
revised code provisions of the CG Code. The updated terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are posted on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during this financial year. The

REE BREZ J& attendance record of each member is as follows:
BEIIT
RE
SERY
Number of
meeting HE=R
®H Name attended/held Attendance rate
Anish LALVANI Anish LALVANI 2/2 100%
BRE Johnson Chin Kwang TAN 212 100%
BRE B Bernard Charnwut CHAN 2/2 100%
MFE Michael Tze Hau LEE 2/2 100%

(R—FE)/\FhA—BHEZRME)

(appointed on 1 May 2008)
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During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Audit Committee had:

reviewed the Group’s annual and interim financial statements with
respect to their true and fairness, and discussed with the external
auditors;

reviewed the changes in accounting standards and their impacts
on the Group’s financial statements;

reviewed the external auditors’ Letter to Management and responses
of the Management;

made recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditors
and reviewed their audit fees;

reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems;

reviewed the internal audit findings and recommendations of the
Internal Audit Department and the responses of Management;

reviewed the continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group; and

reviewed the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements.

Auditors’ Remuneration

Auditors’ remuneration for the year amounted to a total of HK$1,913,000
for the year, of which HK$1,703,000 was incurred for audit service and
HK$210,000 for non-audit services.

Accountability and Audit

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2009 have been audited by the external auditors,
Ernst & Young, and reviewed by the Audit Committee. The directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements

of the Group which were prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.
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A statement by the external auditors about their reporting responsibilities
is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 46 to 47 of this
annual report.

Internal Controls

The Company has in place an internal control system comprising a well-
designed organizational structure that facilitates segregation of duties,
comprehensive operational and financial controls, and effective risk
management. Management, which comprises senior staff and operating
heads of different business units, is primarily responsible for the design,
implementation, and improvement of internal controls. The Board
oversees internal governance and Management's activities. Through the
Audit Committee and the Group’s Internal Audit Department, the Board
has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the internal
control system for the year ended 31 March 2009 which also included
the consideration on the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget.

The Audit Committee has been established by the Board to conduct
regular checking on internal governance and compliance, and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system. The Audit
Committee comprises independent non-executive directors who are
experienced in corporate management. The Audit Committee appoints
and delegates to the Group’s Internal Audit Department the major role
in monitoring the Group’s compliance with policies and standards
and reviewing the effectiveness of internal controls through frequent
auditing of the business of different units across the Group. The Group’s
Internal Audit Department plans its internal audit activities annually and
submits to the Audit Committee for review and approval. Audit findings
are reported to the Audit Committee and any proposed corrective
actions are properly followed up. The Audit Committee also meets
with the Company’s external auditors regularly. Matters raised in the
Letter to Management from external auditors are reviewed by the Audit
Committee.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
shareholders and is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information through published interim and annual reports,
public announcements and other public circulars. The Company
usually conducts briefing immediately following the announcement of
interim and final results. Face-to-face meetings and conference calls
with institutional investors and investment analysts are conducted on a
regular basis to make sure that shareholders and potential investors can
obtain a good understanding of the Company’s business. To ensure all
investors and potential investors receive equal access to information at
the same time, information considered to be of a price sensitive nature
is released by formal public announcements as required by the Listing
Rules.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are encouraged to attend
the annual general meeting for which more than 21 days prior notice
had been given for the annual general meeting held on 25 August 2008
(“2008 AGM"). The Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer,
Chairmen of the Audit and Remuneration Committees and external
auditors were available to answer shareholders’ questions at the 2008
AGM. All resolutions at the 2008 AGM were dealt with by way of poll
with the Chairman of the meeting delegated to the Company Secretary
to explain the poll procedures at the commencement of such meeting.

To comply with the newly amended CG Code which took effect from 1
January 2009, the notice of the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on 28 August 2009 (“2009 AGM”) will be sent
to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before such meeting.
The Company will arrange for the voting at the 2009 AGM to be by
way of poll. An explanation of the detailed procedures of conducting
a poll will be provided to shareholders at the commencement of the
2009 AGM. The results of the poll will be published on both the Stock
Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2009 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 48 to 135.

An interim dividend of HK2 cents per ordinary share was paid on
14 January 2009. The directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK5 cents per ordinary share on or about 17 September
2009 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
on 28 August 2009 which, together with the interim dividend paid,
makes a total dividend of HK7 cents per ordinary share for the year.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 140. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.
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Issued Share Capital

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Share Options

A summary of the share option scheme and details of movements in
share options of the Company during the year, together with the reasons
therefor, are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of the
Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements. The details of
movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 51 to 52
of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 March 2009, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to HK$125,608,000, of which HK$31,442,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$729,000 (2008: HK$779,000).
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Chen CHIANG, GBM (Chairman)

Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer) *
Chi Kin CHIANG

Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Sam Hon Wah NG

Independent Non-executive Directors

Johnson Chin Kwang TAN +

Anish LALVANI +*

Bernard Charnwut CHAN +*

Michael Tze Hau LEE **
(Appointed on 1 May 2008)

+  Members of the Audit Committee

*

Members of the Remuneration Committee

In accordance with Bye-law 189(viii) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms.
Lai Yuen CHIANG, Messrs. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG and Johnson
Chin Kwang TAN will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on

pages 17 to 20 of this annual report. The senior management of the
Group is also executive directors of the Company.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No director had a material interest in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

At 31 March 2009, the number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 628,833,600; and the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")), as recorded in the register of the Company required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were set out below.
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(@) RERAAROREBRO ZHFRE

(a) Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

EERAEE

BITEERZ

N

AEER  AERERS Approximate

L 2R percentage of

ERME Interest in  Interest in the Company’s

BEEHSR Nature of ordinary  underlying wmEt Bz issued

Name of director interest shares shares* Total Notes ordinary shares

BE fEA 3,980,000 - 3,980,000 (1) 0.63%
Chen CHIANG Personal

Hh 398,013,620 - 398,013,620 (3) 63.29%
Other

B fEA 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 (1) 0.80%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Personal

BER A 1,744,000 334,000 2,078,000 (1) 0.33%
Chi Kin CHIANG Personal

BYR EA - 666,000 666,000 (1) 0.11%
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG Personal

Rz EA - 334,000 334,000 (1) 0.05%
Sam Hon Wah NG Personal

R fEA 484,000 - 484,000 (1) 0.08%
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN Personal

Anish LALVANI A 220,000 - 220,000 (1) 0.04%
Personal

* BRAPTET A2 B G 2 EE R
BARB Z B BIPTR 2 B

HEERS -

Mz S m AR AR ET 2

0 - RS BEN M EREME

3l-

*  The interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives represent

interests in options granted under the Company’s share option scheme

of which they were unissued shares. The details of such interests are

set out in note 31 to the financial statements.
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(b) RAEBSEERGD 2HFR

(b) Long positions in shares of associated corporations

(i) Interests in ordinary shares in Chen Hsong Investments Limited

(“CH Investments”):

LHEBRRE

2RITRAG

2B D

Approximate

i) percentage

ERME R of the issued

EEHA Nature of 54 Interest  FfiR shares of

Name of director interest Capacity in shares Notes CH Investments

BE Hith PREEFEZAIIA 66,044,000 (2) 100.00%
Chen CHIANG Other Founder of
discretionary trusts

BB Hitb FHEEFZ 7,823,700 (4) 11.85%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Other BERZ@mA
Eligible beneficiary of
a discretionary trust

BER Hith RREEFEZ 7,823,700 (5) 11.85%
Chi Kin CHIANG Other BERERA
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(i) ARRZEEBEBLWR R (i) Dr. Chen CHIANG, a director of the Company, is deemed to
B TR EE 2 i NEWE be interested in shares and paid-up capital of the following
2 HEmm associated corporations:

{HAEE B AR R
ERITREBK
ERZBAT DL

Approximate
percentage of the

BB, relevant class of

BlREARzER issued shares/

HEEE A Interest in shares/ B paid-up capital of

Name of associated corporation paid-up capital Notes associated corporation

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings 1 f& A& AR 1D 3) 100.00%
Limited 1 redeemable share

BEEEERAH 2 IREmIR (3), (6) 100.00%
Equaltex Investment Limited 2 ordinary shares

Gondmyne Limited 100,000 A& &3 A (3), (6) 100.00%

100,000 ordinary shares

HETERAR] 2 I A 3), (7) 100.00%
Desee Limited 2 ordinary shares
EBBRAT 2 IREmAR (3), (7) 100.00%
Desko Limited 2 ordinary shares
BXER AT 2 IREEAR (3), (7) 100.00%
Goman Limited 2 ordinary shares
=HERAT 2 IRk (3), (7) 100.00%
Koyoki Limited 2 ordinary shares
FIRARAR] 2 A 3), (7) 100.00%
Mikia Limited 2 ordinary shares
REBRRATF 2 B iR 3), (7) 100.00%
Mogin Limited 2 ordinary shares
FEMFBRAR 2 IREEAR (3), (7) 100.00%
Potachi Limited 2 ordinary shares
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IHEESEEEREER
ERITRG BN
BEXBYBADH

Approximate
percentage of the

RBB relevant class of
BWEARZER issued shares/
HEEEER Interest in shares/ [ paid-up capital of
Name of associated corporation paid-up capital Notes associated corporation
PG ex=1 NS 2 LA (3), (7) 100.00%
Parot Limited 2 ordinary shares
MEBRRQF 2 B A 3), 7 100.00%
Rikon Limited 2 ordinary shares
&AM AR 2 RE AR 3, (7) 100.00%
Semicity Limited 2 ordinary shares
L ER A A 2 IREEAR (3), (7) 100.00%
Sibeland Limited 2 ordinary shares
REARAR] 2 RE AR (3), (7) 100.00%
Sumei Limited 2 ordinary shares
Granwich Limited 1 lEiEK (3), (6) 100.00%

1 ordinary share

BEARBREBR R 52,570,000 A% (3), (6) 75.10%
FERBARAT EIBAX

Hong Kong Cad-Cam 52,570,000
Services Limited ordinary shares

Kadom Limited 2 f Ay (3), (6) 100.00%

2 ordinary shares

EEERBRAR] 8 IXEmAR (3), (6) 80.00%
Keyset Development Limited 8 ordinary shares
=S (PE)ERAF 64 ME Ak 3), (8) 100.00%
Callan (China) Limited 64 ordinary shares
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IHEESEEEBER
ERITRG BN
EXRBNBEIL

Approximate
percentage of the

i relevant class of

BWEARZER issued shares/

HEEE AR Interest in shares/ B paid-up capital of

Name of associated corporation paid-up capital Notes associated corporation

ST B EB R AR 33,593,200 T (3), (8) 67.19%
Shanghai Ciro’s Real Estate Co., Ltd. BEUE R
US$33,593,200
paid-up capital

Oriental Triumph Investments Limited 1 iR imhx (3), (9) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

Pro-Team Pacific Limited 1 lEiE (3), (6) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

Tatiara Investment Company Limited 2 B (3), (6) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

Value Creation Group Limited 1 fREimhx (3), (6) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

EEMRFEERER AR 5,000,000 fx (3), (6) 100.00%
Chen Hsong Logistics Services BN ERIEER D
Company Limited 5,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares

B AR AR 50,000,000 A% (3), (6) 100.00%
Chen Hsong Machinery EINE IR D
Company, Limited 50,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares

B (hE)RERRAA 2 iRimic R (3), (6) 100.00%

Chen Hsong (PRC) Investment
Company Limited

RIERZD
2 non-voting
deferred shares
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Wit -

(1)

(3)

4)

(5)

(6)

S ER A BREAANS )
A -

Itk JhCititrust (Bahamas) Limited
MERBRB B EZ M
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited 2/
EeEETAEETIXERER
((BEES ) RERREE
S((REEE D) ZEFLA M
ZREESHRIEREBERE
88.15% 2 11.85% 2 R R #E 25 o
BEFHRAE GRS - BREE
BrAMESEETZMERT
A B EE T A ERIES
RBEFEZILA - MBARIERSE

B -

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings
Limited$5 & 7 42 £88.15% <
¥ i% # %5 Chiangs’ Industrial
Holdings Limited 8l 4 Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited5 2 # & °
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited &%&
EHSZEFEA - BREESFLH
ERA - BRBEELTIESE
SZHERTA  BEEBLE
AR RIFRERER ZKA
MARIER B Z SR

ZEREAREESRE  RE
o MEEG) - AREERE K
ITRFGESEP—(ABRT
BA - WEBRELTERERE

%S

ZEREAREESRE - RE
B MEEGED > BREEEREL
ERFHRESHEP—(IABERT
BA - WEEREETRERE

S S HEEREREA -

ZERTHEHEREER
Gondmyne Limited @4 o
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Notes:

(1)

(2)

(3

4)

(%)

(6)

Such interests are held in the capacity as beneficial owner.

This represents the collective interest indirectly held by Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited, trustee of two discretionary trusts, namely,
The Chiang Chen (“Charity
Foundation”) and The Chiangs’ Family Foundation (“Family
Foundation”), which respectively hold 88.15% and 11.85% of
the issued share capital of CH Investments. By virtue of the SFO,
Dr. Chen CHIANG is deemed to be interested in the aforesaid
discretionary trusts as he is the settlor of both discretionary trusts
and may be regarded as founder of such discretionary trusts.

Industrial Charity Foundation

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited holds 88.15% controlling
interest in CH Investments, in turn, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings
Limited is wholly-owned by Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited. Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited being the trustee of the Charity Foundation in
which, by virtue of the SFO, Dr. Chen CHIANG is deemed to be
interested as he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and may
be regarded as founder of the Charity Foundation.

Such interests were held by the Family Foundation and Ms. Lai
Yuen CHIANG is deemed to be interested under the SFO by
virtue of her being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the Family
Foundation.

Such interests were held by the Family Foundation and Mr.
Chi Kin CHIANG is deemed to be interested under the SFO by
virtue of him being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the Family
Foundation.

Such interests are held by CH Investments.

Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Gondmyne Limited.
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(8) BERERFALEBEERERAA]
0%z Rtk - EIEERA
BRARRIZEHRERC(REDE
RAFE - SC(RE)BRARA
A LB EERR AR
67.19% 2 2 PstEss o

9) ZEEDHEMERERBARE
RARABEERSS

B EXFEEIN RZETNF=A=
T— B ARAEFAHZTHRAEMR
ERARR A THREZE(ERRESF
KB RHIFEXVER) 2 Befn ~ 18RI
BT EA RIEE 7 LB 15RD]£35215
ABRNARRFRFECHAZEMA
REHRR - IRBEFETRIMESTT
HENRA R 2 s SR A ©

EEREROIES 2EF

RAFEER > ARBEZFHHZEHITERA
BRRATUTEZERERN T
NF=ZA=1T—BRRITEZBEEF
IR R B BwAR I EESL

B E XTI EESN - AR R B SE AT K
NAERFALEET A LB BUEAR
NREFAREBEA QR REMEME
ABRzBRMHSESFMER  MEF
RRITBRABRBEZEBHRB TN
R FRRFAREEE I REARQF
EI AR TREITEE R FE
Al o

(8) CH Investments holds 80% controlling interest in Keyset
Development Limited which holds the entire interest of Callan
(China) Limited. Callan (China) Limited which, in turn, holds
67.19% controlling interest in Shanghai Ciro’s Real Estate Co.,
Ltd..

(9) Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Keyset Development Limited.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2009, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Details of share options granted to or exercised by the directors or chief
executive of the Company during the year and their outstanding balances
at 31 March 2009 are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, and none
of the directors, chief executive or their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right during the year.
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FERRRHEMALTRRG RIEEA
Rz BER AR

R-ZETZNF=A=1T—8 BARAE
ENERITRASMA - RIEZEFMAE
R PIZE 3361 RTF < AN 1 B B RC il Prac ik
ZEBRREEAD A TRART 2B &
MERAR D 2 R SORB NN o

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

At 31 March 2009, so far as is known to the directors and chief
executive of the Company, the interests or short positions of substantial
shareholders and other persons in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO were set out below.

RADAT RGO ZHE Long positions in shares of the Company
EARARE T
ZERKRG 2
BHABES T
ZERBRE Approximate
Number of percentage of the
BREEE HE 51 ordinary e Company’s issued
Name of shareholder Capacity shares Notes ordinary shares
EIERE EmEBA 398,013,620 (1) 63.29%
CH Investments Beneficial owner
Chiangs’ Industrial REZGER 2 s 398,013,620 (1) 63.29%
Holdings Limited Interest of a
controlled corporation
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited ZEEA 398,013,620 (1) 63.29%
Trustee
BE PREEFEZ LA 398,013,620 (1), ), 63.29%
Chen CHIANG Founder of (3)
discretionary trust
EnEAA 3,980,000 (3) 0.63%
Beneficial owner
ERREEE REKIE 37,604,000 - 5.98%
(BB)BRAA Investment manager
Schroder Investment
Management
(Hong Kong) Limited
Commonwealth Bank of RIEHIEE 2 38,620,000 4) 6.14%

Australia

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Interest of a
controlled corporation
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1

4)

B E XS - B0

+—
ZA/N

UL BHRE PR 2 R —#A D - @R
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited BEEES 2
EFEA MR AR BRI AR -
i % 55 76 B AR 10 T3 33 38 B A% Il 605 [
Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings LimitedE &
HWITE R H88.15% 2 ERE T MIFH ©

BEBIRESESZMERTA - RIE
BHREMEED - BEELEAERRIE

BEESIMIA - MBARANE B
HHT o

FaELtABRE RS RS
B R RS
MR AR BES A2 BHRGHE
i -

ZE R’ ®
AustraliaE £ =k 8 100% 1%
5o

FiCommonwealth Bank of

® i B 0% B

\ZERTNF=A=
B RBEES KRS GG E3361% -
BIARTFZERMATRE: - BIEE

fa] B Al A £ B AR A2 B0 Sk AR RA X
D2 RERBORR ©

Notes:

(1)

This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments. Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited is deemed to have interest in the relevant shares by
virtue of being the trustees of the Charity Foundation, the relevant shares
are held through its controlled corporation, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings
Limited which holds 88.15% controlling interest in CH Investments.

The relevant shares are deemed to be interested by Dr. Chen CHIANG by
virtue of the SFO as he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and he may
be regarded as the founder of the Charity Foundation.

Ms. Jwung Hwa MA, being the spouse of Dr. Chen CHIANG, in the capacity
of interest of spouse, is deemed to be interested in the relevant shares held
by Dr. Chen CHIANG by virtue of the SFO.

These shares were held by corporations controlled directly or indirectly as
to 100% by Commonwealth Bank of Australia.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2009, no other parties were
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under

Section 336 of the SFO as having interests or short positions in the

shares and underlying shares of the Company.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

On 19 March 2007, a master agreement (the “Master Agreement”)
was entered into between Zhenjian Mould & Machinery (Shenzhen)
Company Limited (“CC-SZ") and Chen Hsong Machinery (Shenzhen)
Company, Limited (“CHM-SZ"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, in which the Company and its subsidiaries including
CHM-SZ would, on non-exclusive basis, purchase steel from CC-SZ for
a term of three years commencing from 1 April 2007. The transaction
value during the year amounted to approximately HK$12,033,000 (net
of value-added tax).

Dr. Chen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, who are directors of the
Company, and their respective associates together control the exercise
of 80% of the voting power at general meetings of Chen Chien Holdings
Limited, which holds the entire equity interest of CC-SZ. Therefore, CC-
SZisaconnected person of the Company as defined in the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the purchases contemplated under the Master Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions have been entered into (1) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company; (2) on normal commercial
terms; and (3) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuanttorule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the auditors of the Company
have issued a letter to the board of directors of the Company that the
above continuing connected transactions (1) have been approved by
the board of directors of the Company; (2) have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing the transactions;
and (3) have not exceeded the cap disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 19 March 2007.
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Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed amount of public float during the year and up to the date of
this report as required under the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The Group’s emolument policy, including salaries and bonuses, is in
line with the local practices where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate. Share options of the Company were granted to selected
employees of the Group under the share option scheme of the Company
for attracting and retaining high talents.

The Remuneration Committee reviews the Group’s emolument policy
and structure for the remuneration of the directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

By Order of the Board

Chen CHIANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 July 2009
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To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Chen Hsong Holdings
Limited set out on pages 48 to 135, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2009, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2009
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street,

Central, Hong Kong

14 July 2009
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EAW R Consolidated Income Statement
BHE-"STAF-A=+—HItEE Year ended 31 March 2009

(BEEFoT) (HK$'000) K12+ Notes 2009 2008
& REVENUE 6 1,603,107 2,316,136
SHE KA Cost of sales (1,234,089) (1,688,250)
EF Gross profit 369,018 627,886
N ey Other income and gains, net 31,824 79,761
HERDHT N Selling and distribution expenses (191,628) (204,087)
TH X Administrative expenses (115,325) (144,199)
Hibag& A Other operating income/

(X )55 (expenses), net 13,245 (17,098)
BB AR Finance costs 8 (4,668) (4,419)
iy kNG Share of profits less losses

s AEEs 18 of associates 1,386 1,130
RRBE AT R PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 103,852 338,974
1A Tax 11 (16,700) (18,129)
AEERF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 87,152 320,845
FER ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

RARIERFEA Equity holders of the Company 85,786 317,829

DEIRRE R Minority interests 1,366 3,016
87,152 320,845

BRE DIVIDENDS 13 44,472 159,240

KATERBFEA EARNINGS PER SHARE

EhEREF ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14
BEARGEN) Basic (HK cents) 13.6 50.8
D AQ 1)) Diluted (HK cents) 13.6 50.6

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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LEEES& Consolidated Balance Sheet
R-ZBZAF=ZA=+— As at 31 March 2009
(BEMFor) (HK$'000) H72F Notes 2009 2008
FkRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y2 - BB R Property, plant and equipment 15 771,742 709,192
At ER Prepaid land lease payments 16 55,735 56,880
FEEES Goodwill 17 94,931 94,931
B E R AR Interests in associates 19 14,780 2,394
A ERERIRE Available-for-sale equity investments 20 124,057 124,057
REEEEE Held-to-maturity investments 21 - -
BT IR A E Deferred tax assets 29 74,321 69,540
HEEWE  BEX Deposits for purchases of items of

B HEA property, plant and equipment 17,499 17,299
EMENE EMG Total non-current assets 1,153,065 1,074,293
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 22 704,309 709,278
JEWE 5 K EIEIRRK Trade and bills receivables 23 516,082 874,324
A FERER Deposits, prepayments and

E b U BR IR other receivables 24 66,297 61,500
FEN AT i B 2 Dividend receivable from an

LERKE available-for-sale equity investment - 37,800
Be MIR1THEE Cash and bank balances 25 445,590 361,744
BV E EMEGT Total current assets 1,732,278 2,044,646
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
BB 5 REBRN Trade and bills payables 26 276,572 410,373
HEfEM IR L EETAE  Other payables and accruals 27 194,122 248,906
RITER - EEAR Bank loans, unsecured 28 37,864 27,814
FE(I BT Tax payable 12,462 22,795
mENBEEET Total current liabilities 521,020 709,888
RBEERE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,211,258 1,334,758
EEAERRBER TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,364,323 2,409,051
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A EEAR Consolidated Balance Sheet

R-ETHE=ZA=+—H As at 31 March 2009

(BEETor) (HK$°000) Ht5F Notes 2009 2008

ERBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

BRI A& Deferred tax liabilities 29 12,169 16,147

BEEFE NET ASSETS 2,352,154 2,392,904

s EQUITY

EATERFEA Equity attributable to equity holders

EihEs of the Company

BT A Issued share capital 30 62,883 62,623

& Reserves 32 2,275,588 2,318,240
2,338,471 2,380,863

DR RELS Minority interests 13,683 12,041

FEa AT Total equity 2,352,154 2,392,904

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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EEEZEEHHREX Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE-_ZTNFE=A=1+—HIIFE Year ended 31 March 2009
2008
FRAREEE AL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BB R E4RE ERgE

kx  EEE  BE it 28

lssued  Share  Capitll EARE ZERE -RBE Exchange REER RREs ERaH

i3 share  premium redemption  Capital  Statutory  General fluctuation Retained &3t Minority Total

(B%Fr) (HK$'000) Notes capital  account  reserve  reseve  reseve  reseve  reserve  profits Total interests  equity
RZZZHEMA—-H  At1 Apil 2007 62416 498308 2% 50463 23976 231 43732 13%837 2077318 7967 2,085,345
BRR% Exchange realignment - - - - - - 132,193 - 132193 1088 133261
TERER Totalincome and expense
BIRERD for the year recognized
BpARTH directly in equity - - - - - - 132193 - 132193 1088 133251
KERER Profitfor the year - - - - - - - 31789 31789 3016 320845
TERBNA Total income and
REH expense for the year - - - - - - 10193 317809 450000 4074 454096
ESRE Issue of new shares 30 07 3146 - - - - - - 333 - 333
WREZHE Equity-settled share
BRERH opiion arrangements - - - 22 - - - - 25 - 25
[RERRER Transfer from retained profts - - - 93 858% - - (86,749) - - -
HE-Z3tf Final dividend
ZR=1-Ait for the year ended
ERZRERE 31 March 2007 - - - - - - - (100,055 (100,055) - (100,05)
D Interim dividend 3 - - - - - - - (50087)  (50,087) - (50087)
RZZENE
=h=t-H At 31 March 2008 62623 501454 295" 51638 109802¢  23b1* 175925" 1476,775F 2,380,863 12,041 2392904
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2009

2009
FARREREAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BET  RH EARE Ei%8

ke EEE  RR e 5y

lssued  Share  Capitll EARE EERE -RBE Exchange FEET RREs ERaH

it share  premium redemption  Capital  Statutory  General fluctuation Retained &3t Minority Total

(B8Fr) (HK$000) Notes capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  reseve  profits Total interests  equity
RZZZN\EMA—H  At1 Apil 2008 62623 501454 2% 51638 109802 2351 175925 1476775 2380863 12041 2392904
B % Exchange realignment - - - - - - (1139) - (1139) 26 (11,117)
TERER Total income and expense
BT ARERN for the year recognized
AR directly in equity - - - - - - 1139 - 33 76 (1L117)
AEREN Profitfor the year - - - - - - - 878 &% 1366 8719
TERBNA Total income and
REH expense for the year - - - - - - (11393) 8786 74393 1642 76035
L) Issue of new shares Kl 60 4920 - - - - - - 5180 - 5180
DATRIES Y Equity-seftled share
ElRiELH option arrangements - - - 0 - - - - 29 - 29
LG Transfer from retained profits - - - 61 7766 - - (8407 - - -
HE-33)\F Final dividend
ZR=t-Ait for the year ended
ERZRERE 31 March 2008 13 - - - - - - - (109417) (109417) - (109417)
hERE Interim dividend 13 - - - - - - - (12570 (12570) - (1257)
RZZENE
=h=t-H At 31 March 2009 62883 506374 295 52308 117568 23b1* 164532% 1432,160F 2338471 13683 2352154
R ZEBEENF=ZA=1+—"HHEGEEEE *  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves  of

BEX ZERERENGEEHBRSB
#2275588000L( = T T )\ F: B #
2,318,240,0007T) °

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009

HK$2,275,588,000 (2008: HK$2,318,240,000) in the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 March 2009.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Year ended 31 March 2009

CEBTFr) (HK$'000) M7t Notes 2009 2008
REEBKZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BREE R Profit before tax 103,852 338,974
FE Adjustments for:
B R Finance costs 8 4,668 4,419
FE(RERE N AR FMEE  Share of profits less losses of associates (1,386) (1,130)
FEUA Interest income 7 (2,493) (3,823)
A ERERIRE Dividend income from an available-for-sale
2 IR EMA equity investment 7 - (37,800)
e Depreciation 7 60,378 55,794
AN A ER 2 R Recognition of prepaid land lease payments 7 1,892 1,805
HEWME - BREREZE Gain on disposal of items of
Z A property, plant and equipment 7 (738) (84)
W - B MEE Write-off of items of
A property, plant and equipment 7 26 58
=IRRAEZFTHE Write-off of aged liabilities 7 (5,300) (12,042)
FERE/ CRERRD) Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of
HEE inventories, net 7 (24,425) 34,608
FEWE 5 R EEER Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of
WA, CRERE)FE trade and bills receivables, net 7 (14,725) 14,342
AR (T ROBBREEE A Equity-settled share option expenses 29 252
121,778 395,373
EARgE N B 2 BRRERER Decrease/(increase) in balances
A, (3 ) with associates (10,702) 4,455
FERD,/(18h0) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 8,497 (135,624)
FEUE 5 RERER Decrease/(increase) in trade
B, (1) and bills receivables 356,236 (188,415)
Al FENFEREM Increase in deposits, prepayments
FEUL R FRIE 0N and other receivables (6,431) (7,774)
JENE 5 REERR Increase/(decrease) in trade
#hn,7 G ) and bills payables (118,363) 101,287
E Ao T BR SR R FE AT Increase/(decrease) in other payables
A& Chd) and accruals (40,011) 42,562
KEEEZR® Cash generated from operations 311,004 211,864
BERAFE Interest paid (4,668) (4.419)
EREAENEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (93) -
iR BN IR Overseas taxes refunded 2,548 3,028
BAEINIE Overseas taxes paid (34,771) (41,295)
REER IS RAFEE  Net cash inflow from operating activities 274,020 169,178
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e RERER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE_STAE=-A=+—HILEE Year ended 31 March 2009

CEBFr) (HK$'000) M7t Notes 2009 2008
REXEKZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEWE  WE Purchases of items of property, plant

NG and equipment 15 (122,090) (58,450)
TES L AR & RN Additions to prepaid land lease payments 16 - (3,518)
LEME - BRE K& Proceeds from disposal of items of

8 50R property, plant and equipment 1,062 155
BUFIE Interest received 2,493 3,823
B E Dividend received 37,800 -
BEEWME - BB L& Increase in deposits for purchases of items of

Bl property, plant and equipment (200) (17,299)
AT R RE B SR HR W B Decrease in bank deposits with

BR=EAz original maturity of more than

TEHFFZORLD three months when acquired 5,403 2,195
KWEEKZIRERHFE  Net cash outflow from investing activities (75,532) (73,094)
BMEXBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BITHR AT 5RIE Proceeds from issue of new shares 30 5,180 3,353
HERITER New bank loans 173,685 52,254
BERITER Repayment of bank loans (161,390) (60,224)
B S Dividends paid (121,994) (150,142)
REEKZIRESMEFE  Net cash outflow from financing activities (104,519) (154,759)
RERREZEEY NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN

Zi&m, Gid) 8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 93,969 (58,675)
FYZ2HE Cash and cash equivalents

MIREEEY at beginning of year 329,798 363,613

[EREH) 8T Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (5,441) 24,860
FR2AE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RRSEZEY AT END OF YEAR 418,326 329,798
REeERBREEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

Rz CASH EQUIVALENTS
Re MIRTTET Cash and bank balances 25 407,369 295,777
P F e BE B R B B Bank deposits with original maturity

N =18z E#FR of less than three months when acquired 25 10,957 34,021

418,326 329,798
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Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2009

(BEMFor) (HK$'000) H72F Notes 2009 2008
FkRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Y2 - BB R Property, plant and equipment 15 738 836
N RIEPNEIL Interests in subsidiaries 18 696,803 816,649
IEREN B EARGT Total non-current assets 697,541 817,485
MENEE CURRENT ASSETS

A& K HAb IR R Deposits and other receivables 24 725 915
Re MIRTTHETF Cash and bank balances 25 4,574 4,490
MEVEEEET Total current assets 5,299 5,405
REAE CURRENT LIABILITIES

EbfEMERFA L ERTBME  Other payables and accruals 27 4,776 19,140
RBEE(BFE)FE NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 523 (13,735)
EEFRE NET ASSETS 698,064 803,750
ER EQUITY

BEITIOAR Issued share capital 30 62,883 62,623
i Reserves 32 635,181 741,127
s gast Total equity 698,064 803,750

#72Z Chen CHIANG
F /& Chairman

%S Lai Yuen CHIANG
7TIECAE %, Chief Executive Officer
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009
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NEAEH

BHEEEARAR /N AFRELMAKL
ZHBBARR] « RRRIZ EREFME
RBEBHAAHARE TEWALZELI

21558 -

FA - AREEZBRFRENHE TS
HWEBREEmR -

EERABERRFZBEBIERRATA/R
B 04 55 s it A 2 2 Cititrust (Bahamas)
Limited e BB MK Lz BHKRER
RAF ([BHIREDAARNARZE

BERAT -

21 REERGEEE

mRERE

HZEPBBRRIDEREB GG
B BEMHEHRELEN(REMER
BMBHREER - FBGFEA LA
B) BEARGHRAREEAFE
Bl BBEERMRER - MK IILE
SERANEDIM RS - IR ABEZ
5 BRT RBER - TESBEHNUTT
(BEETIT)5HR
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Chen Hsong Holdings Limited is a limited
incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at 13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,

Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

liability company

During the year, the Group was principally involved in the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding
company is Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited, a company incorporated in
the Bahamas. Chen Hsong Investments Limited (“CH Investments”),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong, is the Company’s immediate
holding company.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CONSOLIDATION

56

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise
indicated.



Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2009
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2.1 REURGEEEE) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CONSOLIDATION (continued)

mER%E

RAaMBRREBEARTNEHNBEAT
(2HEHA EEDBE_TTNEF=
A=Z+T—BLFEZMHERER - HEF
BERHBREA A2 - S {EHFREIAE
—H - FAEMBARZFERENER
(BN AREEEGEGIEZ B) L&A R
B UFESARESZEHRRIEAR
1k - REBERA RRIREZ RS KERH
RASIEMIA - BAMKERBSTC
e IR E RARE T A o

DB R ot 1R IF R AN R R ] Y PSR
BREARBZMBRAIZEEREE
FERRA 2K -

22 HETRBET 2B BU K REER

d 2

AEEERAFE 2B REANE KR
WL R TR RS AT BB S
8] -

FRERER  BHEEFER
EIPHRNEFE  FE39TE

MismEER TH: R
FTHRAERT AEREEYE

HELERF75R
TRTA: BHE—
TREEEN
DR IER]

X (BB  IRSETTERHE
WERE
ZE®
—BE
F12%%

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2009. Adjustments are made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. Income,
expenses and unrealized gains and losses resulting from intercompany
transactions and intercompany balances within the Group are
eliminated on consolidation in full.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders not
held by the Group in the results and net assets of the Company’s
subsidiaries.

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new interpretations and
amendments to HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial

Amendments Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Reclassification of

Financial Assets

HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

2 HESEEAT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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TR (ERTE  BEEFER

wEnE F19% —E
Z8%) BAEEREE
— ek RIEESHE N
FE145% HiRERE

R SRR E SRS G
BRELEANBYERZENBRE
A B BT S AEE -

2.3 BREAEARENRNEBHBREE
C L2

AREREA BN A FET B HREARABIAT
EEME R ARERZHE] MEIERIEE
PR IELER o

BRMBHRE B AUHRSER
HERIFE 1R M FE1FEIRB
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E27RMERT ERIREEE
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HEZEH R
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

The adoption of these new interpretations and amendments has had

no significant financial effect on these financial statements and there

have been no significant changes to the accounting policies applied in

these financial statements.

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
Amendments

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 2 Amendments

58

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of HKFRSs and HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements — Cost of an Investment in
a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity
or Associate!

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations!
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2009

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

59

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment

Business Combinations?

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Improving
Disclosures about Financial
Instruments!

Operating Segments!

Presentation of Financial Statements!

Borrowing Costs!

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements?®

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising
on Liquidation!

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged
[tems®
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

B (BBH® 5 (EERME HK(FRIC) = Int9 Amendments to HK(IFRIC) — Int 9

wERELZE mERELZE® and HKAS 39 Reassessment of Embedded
=) -2 —REEREH Amendments Derivatives and HKAS 39 Financial
FIWLEE ST ARSTE Instruments: Recognition and
SEIER TAREEE Measurement — Embedded
FI99R(EE] AERI 23955 & At Derivatives?
TEH:ERX
FrE—@mAR
PTET R ZEF]?
B (BB 75
g)—RE:
$£13%% BEERRIAS EEN HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes*
F155F EihE EE ! HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real
Estate!
E165% HINETSFRE HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a
2 pak Foreign Operation®
E175% A E A IkIE HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets
HEEES to Owners®
185 AR PEEEES HK(IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers?

B EatESN - &

BREM G IMELER

R AR BT

HEABEBVERELEAEL ZEFT -
TEEHRRTRREEER
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Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to
HKFRSs* which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs primarily
with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording.

60



Notes to Financial Statements
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

23 BB ERERNEBUBREE
AR & ()

REZZTNF—A— B UEFABZF
EHIEER
TEBRENA=HBEFAEIFEE
BRI
RZZEZThF+A—BRUBRAZE
JE AR A Ak
REZZTNFLA— B UEFABZF
EHIEER
RZZEZNF+A—HAERBZF
AR AR

RZZBTN\F+ AEM 2 BB E®R
SRR BEREH B BM G RE L
AIZELSE - BB REERETHR -
S GRTHERFELR BESHERE
85% - HAGEEREL0N - BAEGE
HRIE165 - BB QLR FISHK -
EFGHERFEI0% - FA e EL
F20% - B ERNE3R - BE
SFTEAIFE27 - BB ERE28
5% BB YRR E295% - BB ST
HRIZE315 - BB GTER FE345%
B @§+5‘§H|J%365ﬁ - BE G R
F38%% - B /%H|J%395f BB
g5 ﬁﬂ‘J%élOs}fT&%ﬁé%a AR %41
%EVEHjZ E5] - REAM RS ERE
SR ZIERTRZZETNFEA—HI
sz FEBMAERIN - s
R-ZEThF—A—BRUERBZE
EHARE AR - S IEER T ERE R
BB o

6l

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in October 2008 contain amendments
to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 8, HKAS 10, HKAS 16, HKAS 18,
HKAS 19, HKAS 20, HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28, HKAS 29, HKAS 31,
HKAS 34, HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS 39, HKAS 40 and HKAS 41. Except
for the amendment to HKFRS 5 which is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009, other amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 although there are
separate transitional provisions for each standard.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009
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23 A EBEREMNEBUBREE 2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

Al & (&) FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
N RZEZNFERABHNES In addition, improvements to HKFRSs issued in May 2009 contains

TSRS R W B IR E B
WEERF2R  BAMBRE LR
FEoIE - BEWHMEENFES - &
BETEAELR - B G ELET
5 BAESFTERELZE  BEEE
ERF1SHEH R - BE ST ERE
36%% - HA G EA|E3L - FEG
FHERIZE395E - BB (BRM B HmE2
BZE®) —2BFRRNEE(BERY
BHREnBLEE) —REFI6MAIE
7l R EBEBMBREEAFSR &
BERTERIFE38YE - BB (BRI B H
TREZ8e) —REFLEE(E
RHBRERERES) —REE16H
BERTR T T NFL A — B AL
M ERRER R BB B G ELF
1857 # B S A 2 5T 3 8 3R B 18R 1 16k
SON - BAERT AR T —FF—A—
B AR FEHRREAR - L
A& BRA BB -

REBR LA FHN] MBI 2B
MBREERNNT EROZEEHFT
fh o 25 EmE S RNE BT RELE
AFE7HR(ER]) ~ BAVBREERF
8RR EBEAR G EREIFER]) AT8E
EEFIRSERT NG - MEA G ER
F27HRERT) JREE ST BR 2 E
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BRI TR BE A AN R B 2 (2 R AE o B
BURUERREARNTZE
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amendments to HKFRS 2, HKFRS 5, HKFRS 8, HKAS 1, HKAS 7,
HKAS 17, Appendix to HKAS 18, HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS 39,
HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 16. Except for the amendments
to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 16,
which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009, and no transitional provisions for amendment to Appendix to
HKAS 18 has been specified, other amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010 although there
are separate transitional provisions for each standard.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, it has
concluded that while the adoption of HKFRS 7 Amendments, HKFRS
8 and HKAS 1 (Revised) may result in new or amended disclosures
and the adoption of HKAS 27 (Revised) may result in changes in
accounting policies, these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.
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FESHERREE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
ME AT Subsidiaries
[ IEENGIDREE VNI A ke g 2P A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
HMQ&%“%EZ CtImE HEKTDES Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from
Al /N its activities.
MIE A F 2 AR E WM EWAR BT A The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
RREZ WK o RABIRHE AR statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
ez TR A E R RESER - Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
BENTF Associates
By N alIERRM B AR - AEEHER An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group
Hh %%E?xm% MR D HR20% 2 = HRHE has a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
o WA EITEERFE N Z A F voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence.
REBEFTHHE N T 2 WiE1% 2485 N fH# The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
EBHE D RIBERNGEREE MGG associates is included in the consolidated income statement and
BR - REBRE S AR ERIRERE consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in associates
AT EASE G EEFERAMR are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of
BEE  JAGEBEERRBR - A5HF net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
EE SN T2 BRI 5 P E S KR & losses. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between
BIERSUREERBZ N FINERA the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
PR LUARTSY  BRIEAREIE EIBIR L pred interests in the associates, except where unrealized losses provide
EEERBERNSE - evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
-G Joint ventures
BENBTIARKLTHERK S 2~ E] 0 1R A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement, whereby
BT AREBEEAME LKL L the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity. The joint
EF o BENRINBIY AR FRLE - venture operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the other
MAEEEE & A RS - parties have an interest.
63
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—ETNF=A=+—H 31 March 2009
3. FESHBERBER) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

EERT(E) Joint ventures (continued)
BETZEFIN 2 AL RERE The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the
FZEE  aERERE RN GBI capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration of the
REEZERE - RERERREH A joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be realized upon
EBANKBEEZ DK - TRaE its dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint venture’s operations
FREEBTELOISIRIEE 2 and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the venturers,
2GR - either in proportion to their respective capital contributions, or in

accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

BENTZERERENT A joint venture is treated as:

(@) HARRHAEARHEREEXHE (a) a subsidiary, if the Company has unilateral control, directly or
BB EELIE - AIEERRTY indirectly, over the joint venture;

EBMBARRE ;

(b) ARREAEENREE T HEZES (b) an associate, if the Company does not have unilateral or joint
SR - BEEREEES control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not less than
HEMEARTLR20% @ WA HE 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and is in a position to
TREAFES - BagRAIE exercise significant influence over the joint venture; or

REBENRIRIE ¢ 3

() RIEFEGLEREIN WAL (c) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39,
AYAE AR ERAEEREGEE if the Company holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20% of the
MEARDH20% - I ¥ H K77 joint venture’s registered capital and has neither joint control of,
HENTAITEEAZES - Bl nor is in a position to exercise significant influence over, the joint
ERAIMERERITIRERE - venture.
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3. XESHBEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Gooawill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or after 1
January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is initially recognized in the consolidated
balance sheet as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units), to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognized. An impairment loss recognized for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss
on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance
is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of
and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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(continued)
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Excess over the cost of business combinations

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’

identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost

of acquisition of subsidiaries, after reassessment,

is recognized

immediately in the income statement.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
(i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the
Group; (ii) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or any of its holding companies;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred
to in (a) or (c);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (c) or (d); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.
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TEETHERBEE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
e REE(FEBRIMN RE Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
WEBRBTRHAREXERK®EE Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
ETFEREIR(FE  BEEFHIEE testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
E-oRMEERFERIN) - Bl assets, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount
ZEEMIKEISRE - KB SREILRE is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
ESReENEMNEREAEIEATE or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs to sell,
BERHERAUERSE /L) - WtE and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
FIEEMETE  WIFEHEELRES generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
FEEAREE EBUREMmEEEESR assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
BIEBERERA - FEULIER T AU E & 58 determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
MEEFBNRGEHBEMMET °
BEBEEREERAEBRLHETKE An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an
SRR T AR o REThEAEER asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
fhEt B2 IR &M E LA RMIRF 55T estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
R EEEEERE ESTRERABRE a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
AIITIREITREIRE - BEBERESE time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
HE BRIk o loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it

arises.
REERRASTEERETRETRZ An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is
BIEERRBEBETNBFEEIRD any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no
WMHRZEDR - AlgfatakEs longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
o BAERANEERERE(EER recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment
INEERANETEENRESER loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
fhET R R - MR EIE R BB TS change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
RS ATFEEWEREERRRE that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
B A M BRE(E (FNBRITE B 8 would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortization)
%) o BEBENREEREEBRBGA had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A
a5k o reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the income statement

in the period in which it arises.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where
the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is
capitalized as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

BEZEF — RELFH Buildings in Hong Kong —  Over the lease terms

BB @ — +tEESTHF Buildings outside Hong Kong - 15 to 60 years
ZEF

R - 2R — —E+EF Plant, machinery, furniture - 2to 15 years

RIS Lt R A

IKAFERE L0 AR R AT E RS -

EE  BERREER 2 BH AT
RHEMMR - %0ER ZRARARE
EHRIBERSH - HEHHEEHET

o+

i

o
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and other equipment
Freehold land is not depreciated.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different

useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognized
in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognized is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plants under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

MRERBERER Research and development costs
FIEMEBERNEERERD KB All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

SEARRIEMNTEIRR R L
AIAT - {£5%78 B W B & E A DA
HHE BERBRENEAKEEZE
B REENAERARREENS - &
RIVERTKZEE  NERZNEER

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalized and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic

AILASERIHbET = - i BRA ATERNER benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
DS - BRI - AT NEERS ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
TEPIZ RIE © Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria

69

is expensed when incurred.
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TESHBRBEDE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

RERHEMESRMEE Investments and other financial assets
TRIBERNTIRTERRUAFETNE - When financial assets are recognized initially, they are measured at fair
MERSBMEEREEKAGTE - value, plus, directly attributable transaction costs.
REERUREREETESRMEED The Group determines the classification of its financial assets after
B WA REE 2B TRESEH initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates
EFRHEEBESE - this designation at the balance sheet date.
ERBERATEARBECSRMEERR All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized
RHBAIAREBAFEERNHEZE on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
EZAE)TURR EBBEATEA or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
N E T ERIR— R mI5RE K IEHIE sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
—EHRAZRKINEEZSREEE generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
=
B R BN A Loans and receivables
B REBGRIATEFE KA EE N RE Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
EMEERM S EREZIFTESR determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such
BE  REFEAEHEBUEBENERG A assets are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective
FHEERCAARR - R ERDRER A o interest method less any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is
FH18 B A ET AUREE 2 (AT TaE 5m calculated taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
BIEETE  UBEBEENERRZFHK and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest
AR EE D 2 B - BEKERE rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognized in the
BRE R M EW BN BE R SR E income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognized or
Iy N BB S AR e 5t AR R o impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

70
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TEETHERRBEE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

RERHEMESREE(AE) Investments and other financial assets (continued)
FFRHHRE Held-to-maturity investments
E{n [E] 72 3% A EE T A+ 3 B8 K [ 5 B 2R Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
H - mASEGERENEE RGN and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the Group
ZRHRETEGSREES BARSE has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-
BIHRIGE o BRI HE R AGTE maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost
BRI ERE - EIEBOKARZAY] less any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is computed as the
IRARK SRS ER - MR amount initially recognized minus principal repayments, plus or minus
BEENETEFE VB AR SRS the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any
e ZR2MRFTEE - LETERE difference between the initially recognized amount and the maturity
BIETHERHNEZER ZBEASLFT amount. This calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
SR B A A e o It BB BRI between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
R RSBANMMEEMERITNA interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums and discounts.
AR ADEER D o IR B RBEHER K Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the
WETERE - R EE(REE investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the
) il R ARER - amortization process.
AR ESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets
AMEEESREE R LT RIELTRAR Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets in
FBHRZIENTECREE ZS2mE listed and unlisted equity securities that are designated as available
ERTRIHEENLAEAEME for sale or are not classified in any of the other two categories. After
R EERIA - RYIGRTERE » Al initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at
EeREEERLTEE - B EE fair value, with gains or losses recognized as a separate component

REBMHESEN D EZIREREE of equity until the investment is derecognized or until the investment
RAEZWEWETERE - RN is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or
B2 BT B S BB AR T loss previously reported in equity is included in the income statement.
W o FTERELZ FI| B FIAR B9 BIE AT S Interest and dividends earned are reported as interest income and
WAFBEERARIR - 1R T3 dezs dividend income, respectively, and are recognized in the income
R IFTE 2 BUR i R R A B statement as “Other income” in accordance with the policies set out
WA s EREEE ZRERIBRIK for “Revenue recognition” below. Losses arising from the impairment
mRERA ATHIEESREERER of such investments are recognized in the income statement as
Bl o “Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets”.
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TESHBRBEDE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
RERHEMmESMEEE) Investments and other financial assets (continued)
AR ESFHEEE) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
MIELMRAE S 2 A ETRER] 52 When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
e REANZIRESEATENMN measured because (i) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
FrEE R AR B ()R ZEE AL estimates is significant for that investment or (ii) the probabilities of the
BhEr 2 ATl Mo A B A AR various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
ETRTE - BIZEESFIRR AR used in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less any
AUREREEYIER - impairment losses.
~FE Fair value
EEFNERMES IR S 2IREZ A The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organized
TE2ENEE R 2 THRTE © WE financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market
BB 2 TS NER - AT EGERBE bid prices at the close of business at the balance sheet date. For
BAERET - S HERESEnN# investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined
TZRVFMHRE - A ABIER SR using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent
TAZBTMSER ReRsEMAS arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current market value
WFHARE E R o of another instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted
cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.
cRMEERE Impairment of financial assets
AEBNESELEE AT HREHFESE The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any
FEHBANEx—HemEELRR objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
(ER is impaired.
72
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TEETHERBEE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
EHMEERE(E) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
LA ETE R GHE 2 B E Assets carried at amortized cost
IR B ZE 5 K AP LA S 12 R AN ET If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
B2ER  EURERISEDEREEE receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at amortized cost
REEE  FTEEREEEREGEARK has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
ZHeRE(TBERREEZRKSE between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
B8R AR E IR AR (RN )06 HERR future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
FATERAMERFZ)TIREREE incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
IMEREAERRE - EEEEZER rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The
ErRBEZ PR IEBEFERE (FE carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through the
o MBS ER KGR NERALR © H use of an allowance account. The amount of the impairment loss is
FERRZWE N ER - mATE RS recognized in the income statement. Loans and receivables together
EERGERTASE  AEFRRER with any associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
SRIEE R B R RS T aEss o prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has

been transferred to the Group.
AR AR - (W RERIE 2 SR If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
Rl 2 RAZE - R EEERRE and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
FrEs i 2 E1HHERAEE - BB BT E the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment
IR CATER ZREEE - NEBEEE loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent
B WEEERAEWEBRTEBHE reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the income statement,
FIRKAS - RI(E(RBEES 1B 2 HIE B B 1§ to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
Rz R NTERAR - amortized cost at the reversal date.
E S REMERIRRME - REEE In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for impairment
BE(HmEBSAEHEBEXAEERY is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of
BN E# 2 B A RBHY - TSRS E insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and significant
BREHRHEBABK IR 2B changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment
RN ) B AN [ S A TR BN ER AR that have an adverse effect on the debtor) that the Group will not be
B E RG4S R 2 T FURRHE able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of an
HRERE - BUIERIE 2 REETER invoice. The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through the
BERMFAR - RERE 2 EEETE use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognized when
REEEIR - RIS HE SR they are assessed as uncollectible.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted
equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognized in the income statement, is transferred from
equity to the income statement. An impairment is made for available-
for-sale equity investments when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other
objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is
“significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not reversed
through the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part

of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized where:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the asset,
but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or
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TEETHERRBEE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

A SRmEE (&) Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

o AREECHEEHEWEZBEEMS e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
BemeE 2B A - W) EeEEZIA asset and either (i) has transferred substantially all the risks and
BEZ BRIy R MER  8ii) rewards of the asset, or (i) has neither transferred nor retained
RS REBFZIBEER KA D substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
B B3R - (BEEEZBEEY transferred control of the asset.

PRI o

A& @D SR AW ZIAEEMSR Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an

EME N - B mEEN(REZIE asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks

BEZBREDER LB - B and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset

BZIAEEIERIE - ZIAEERER is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the

AR G AREEBRE S RZEBEE asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over

E o HEIRIEAEEREEREEE the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying

o —IBRE - EHEEEETIAZEE amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that

EZRERBEMAEESAEEZRE the Group could be required to repay.

HEE LR (UAREERE)FTE -

D@ Ezerma s (8 Financial liabilities at amortized cost (including interest-bearing

FTEERREE) loans and borrowings)

TREBEBERENESREERR - & Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other payables

HEMNER - R EERREE - &) and interest-bearing loans and borrowings are initially stated at fair

BERAVTEREZEEXZHATEE value less directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently

ERFERERR S A HE MR AT measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest method unless

B WIhE 22U IERERN B the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

ZIER T RILAB A FIER - BRAF S H are stated at cost. The related interest expense is recognized within

PUER TR 2 [ BUE KR JFER o “finance costs” in the income statement.

IR BEREERER - B EE( Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when

R HE T ) RIS R AR o the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the amortization

process.
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TESHBRBEDE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

BEmIEHas Derecognition of financial liabilities
B A& 2 BED R ok SH ek fEim i A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
BEHTER © liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
ERBLRBERR—ERAUNEAT When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
Rz BERNRE - R EaE 2K same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
RBEREWE - BB IERAIE liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
RAERERRRBARERER —ENA is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
& - MBBERME . ZBIIREERRN of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
HERALR o amounts is recognized in the income statement.
78 Inventories
GFEIEZKAB R ERFECRES Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
ABR o (AR T 55TE - (WATE Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
ENEK SR AIBREEEDE B work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
BIREDEEEBRANE D AR - labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realizable
AR FEDBEGTEERETETE value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
FEMERREEERE 2 EAK be incurred to completion and disposal.
& o
ReERESEEY Cash and cash equivalents
AR eRERME  RERBEE For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
EWERE  RITEFERTHER - A equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balances and bank deposits,
NAIBER IR A E MERERE - WAR and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
BEEZHRREMCEHAESERBNE known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
ZIEE - —EREAR=EAREE - in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
MR BRERERER ZIRITES - &IRIT when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
BYREAAEERESER , —ETE and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
i
MEEAGBERME BekRTEFE For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and bank balances
R BOEELTEHER AR comprise cash on hand, bank balances and bank deposits, which are
AP HEPR I © not restricted as to use.
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3. XESHBEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
BiE Provisions
BERBETEHMEEAEREEECE A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
EKHET)  MEBITZETRITEER has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future

Bt - BEEZ BRI S
&t RUHERREME -

AR EX - BARBREZSERTA
HEITREEMBZRARAXNEER
ZBE - BN ER SR RE

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized
for a provision is the present value at the balance sheet date of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.

ELFE I - AT AR Z B ERR A The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
A e passage of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.
AEEERETERZERRERE Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on certain

TRBHEENBEREBREEZE

products are recognized based on sales volume and past experience

S (EEH)NREHIRESEE - of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate.
PiEEE) Income tax

FrSIBEE B RIETIA © FrSTR
Wk NERAL - INZIEFEHRED
RIS R IER B - SRR
%%ﬁﬁﬂ_ﬂﬁﬂﬁkﬂﬁzlﬁﬁ B AR
IR TR ©

RNEERARNAMZ BB EERE
EATEEA PR Bl sk 2 F RIS HEA R &
Rt E o

HEHEAR  BERBENHERREE
FBERE M REE 2 BT A TR E
£ BHABAREERARE -
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Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to items

that are recognized in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e inrespectof taxable temporary differences associated with interests
in subsidiaries and associates, where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses,
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
interests in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.
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TESHBRBED) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

FER(E) Income tax (continued)

EERIBEEMERRE  TE8EEEA The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance

FUAFHE - AN BRI geE BB RTF sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable

HRNEIEENRIEEEN 2 HHEL that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

5 AIHDREE IR EEREE - 18 deferred tax asset to be utilized. Conversely, previously unrecognized

[ - TERTRES B S8 SR MR R DA 40 deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and

HEARIBEEEN 2RO - AlER are recognized to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable

BAENTHRRNIELERIEEE profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

utilized.

BREESSEBENSHEEHERD Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are

HE RO RECERBEERSE expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability

& WALEBHE HEKL&ERS AR is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

AR R (R BE) BELE - substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

EEMRIBEE MRERIABER AR Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
THIEEERROIBEAEBSART enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
FEEEFT « URERLERIETIE TR liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
— AR AR NMA—TBEEZEAT the same taxation authority.

5 A B o

WS Revenue recognition

EZIKEIT 1S B BB s Rz I Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits

O RER] 5 ﬁijriﬁﬁ WS W ER will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,

&HZT%’_‘J% ABR on the following bases:

(a) LEERTHE  EEREBEZK (a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
BoRREEmEEEEER - M of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
REBEYERFEZDOLEEME the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
R EREEELHENEER usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
il goods sold;

(b) MRIEE U TR IRTFET (b) service fee income, when the services have been rendered:;
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3. XESHBEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established.

Pre-operating expenses

Pre-operating expenses represent expenses incurred prior to the
commencement of commercial operations and are charged to the
income statement when incurred.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognized on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are recognized as a liability
only when they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting and declared.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s Bye-Laws grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognized
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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TEETHERBEE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
& Foreign currencies
ZEV MR ABE(TIRRR 2 RE These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
LENEE)Z25 - KAEEB TS AR is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in
BITRTEHGEEE - M AR the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
WERN BB HAZIEEEETE - b in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
MR OB RIER 5 B2 e EtkiE R functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
ABR - REEBINE BBz EBE using the functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the
EREEEZB 2 EKEXEHRR transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
H o FIEEERAWGER - IRIBINERE currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange
SR AFTE 2 IEEEIB R IZVIBR 5 H ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the
B [ERIRE o RIBINEQNFEFE income statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
IEFEMIFEIRETE AT EE B 2 ERR historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
o exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
ATEINMBAFT - REE AT 288 The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
EEIWIEBTT - REER » ZSRRIZ associates are currencies other than Hong Kong dollars. As at the
BENMBEOREEH ZIERBRE AR balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
NRAZEWEE - MZRSEARZWEE translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
BEAZMEFERERAETT o E exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and their income
TR AE R BIRGEE - RSN statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
NRE - EEIMNMEETERER L average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
IR RET KRN R TR o are included in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a
foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognized in
equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the
income statement.
BiFEREMNERME  BINIB AT For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash
ZIRERELEHE A IERRE BE flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
Lo BINMBRRFALTEEE R at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
DML FEN 2 I TFHERRE 5 recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
JC ° the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
81
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(continued)

Employee benefits

(a) Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a certain percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the Group operated
a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme (the “DCRB
Scheme”) for those employees who were eligible and had elected
to participate in the DCRB Scheme. The DCRB Scheme operates
in a similar way to the MPF Scheme, except that when an
employee leaves the Group prior to his/her interest in the DCRB
Scheme vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group would be reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme (the “Central
Scheme”) which is operated by the local municipal governments.
The contributions payable by these subsidiaries to the Central
Scheme, which are based on a certain percentage of the salaries
of their employees, are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the Central
Scheme.
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3. XESHBEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

EEEF(E)

Employee benefits (continued)

(@) RikzitZ|(#&)

(a) Pension schemes (continued)
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As required by the Taiwanese Labour Standard Law, the Group’s
subsidiaries in Taiwan operate a funded defined benefits pension
scheme (the “Old Scheme”) and make monthly contributions to
the retirement fund to meet employees’ retirement and termination
benefits entitlements. The fund is administered by the Employees’
Retirement Fund Committee (the “Committee”) and is deposited
under the Committee’s name with a government approved
financial institution, which acts as the trustee. The expected costs
of providing pensions under the Old Scheme are charged to the
income statement over the periods during which the employees
provide the related services to the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan.

In 2005, the Taiwan government amended the related pension
scheme by adding a new contributory pension scheme (the “New
Scheme”) in the Labour Pension Act, which became effective on
1 July 2005. According to the amended retirement regulations,
the employees could choose to either select the New Scheme or
to stay with the Old Scheme whatever they want. The obligation of
Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan to those employees selecting the
New Scheme is to contribute the required portion of the monthly
compensation, to the government designated account since the
election, while the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan are still liable
under the Old Scheme for the portion pertaining to the service
years prior to 1 July 2005.
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3. XESHBEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

EEEA(E)

Employee benefits (continued)

(b) BRRENZNKS

(b) Share-based payment transactions
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The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken
of any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to
the price of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”), if
applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the
date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognized
for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
income statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance conditions are satisfied.
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3. TEETHRBER) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

EERRE) Employee benefits (continued)

(b) ERBRENZIXZ(E) (b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)
%DXHﬁTgiﬁiﬁwﬂ’]ﬂ%ﬁfkﬂﬁ% ' Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
FEREZIHITHL  JEAERIL a minimum an expense is recognized as if the terms had not
1BET—M o o - fWiRfE pTEIHHE’] been modified. In addition, an expense is recognized for any
ST TSR EBERBRENS modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-
N BB AT EEFTEIN - s based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
BEBREMFIZE - BIERZEE employee as measured at the date of modification.

FIHER ST ©

& DARRHE A TR GESE Y - & ARIE Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
MNERTEEACKEE - RN had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
) R FERR B () 32 HH & BB g o recognized for the award is recognized immediately. However,
SR - (WAL SHAYEREN B (TR A if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
s WETAREEANER designated as a replacementaward on the date that itis granted, the
W - BRI S R an EER cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification
Frif 548 AR A NS RTRR IR o of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.
RATE B AR B o B LARESD The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
BHEEANR  sTESREF - share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
REBCHMNE BV BHREENE The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
255 B HA DA =2 5 O SR A 38 respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only
&R 2B B ISHREERE2 to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had
REAN_ZTZ_F+—HtRAZ not vested by 1 April 2005 and to those granted on or after 1 April
BEREER_ZEZTRAFNA—HE] 2005.

1) AR 57 BB O DA RS ST A VR B - 2A
L-_ZEZRFNA-BRZERL

HBE AR o
BERA& Borrowing costs
BERAREEEHANERSERERS Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the income statement
S e in the period in which they are incurred.
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B RS HE R & 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

RENEBYBREE - BEEAED The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires

AR ERmEIHcWa A - & management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions

ENBEIUAESAEGEZZ2HEE 24 that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and

B (G Et R o A LSRRG liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting

T ETEREZREERBRRKRAES date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates

FEEENAGERABFELERSA could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to

o the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

R Judgements

REAAEE 2 gFTECRBAREY - B In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,

BEVEH NS BHRERAFTERSRE management has made the following judgements which have the

EAREATE 7 HH most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements:

(a) BEWE

(a) Impairment of assets

ETEERGLERBEBEIBEEN

WEZBEREE TNEFAER A& In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
E/AEERESEEL HE - 5 causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has to exercise
FEAHOBESHIRTREFESR judgementinthe area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing:
EEBEZEHRTEEEBEZZ (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value
EFEHEIGFE QBEEREE or such event affecting the asset value has not been in existence;
ELhESREBRBeRERBEFH (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
Y MBBESRERSEFER net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
BENKRIEERMG Q)RR upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3)
Bernsf@ilmrREs T2 /REE the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
ERSREENEE RS =T flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
I o WEIREFTIE F DURATERIEK discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
FrzRER(BERESREEAMA selected by management to determine the level of impairment,
WIRRFERREBER)EE - ¥ including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
BEARAREFEERKERY cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
Z . used in the impairment test.

(b) 72kAREEEZHF (b) Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends
AEBERT RS ERES BB The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for withholding
EEEETHBRARD K2 taxes arising from the distributions of dividends from certain
BEMRIEN - DR NRERRE subsidiaries according to the relevant tax jurisdictions is subject
MIELHHE - KREERE @ (MER to judgement on the timing of the payment of the dividend. The
AR 7 RS F T ESR - BIE Group considered that if the profits will not be distributed in the
EFHRIBE - foreseeable future, then no withholding taxes should be provided.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed as below.

(a) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill as at
31 March 2009 was HK$94,931,000 (2008: HK$94,931,000).
More details of the impairment assessment are given in note 17.

(b) Estimation regarding impairment of inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventory ageing analysis
on a periodic basis for those aged inventories. This involves
comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory items
with the respective fair value less costs to sell. The purpose is
to ascertain whether impairment is required to be made in the
financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving items. In
addition, physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a
periodic basis in order to determine whether impairment needs
to be made in respect of any obsolete and defective inventories
identified.

(c) Estimation regarding impairment of trade and bills receivables

In determining whether impairment of trade and bills receivables
is required, the Group takes into consideration the ageing status
and the likelihood of collection. Following the identification
of objective evidence for potential impairment of debts, the
responsible personnel will discuss with the relevant customers and
report to management on the recoverability. Individual impairment
allowance is only made for those impaired receivables that are
unlikely to be collected.

2 HESEEAT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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5. 7EEH 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

DREMARBLBERALS

(i) WMEBHBERZREDRELN -

Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats:

(i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by geographical segment;
and

(i) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by business segment.

REEZFEER ARERIHE FBH The principal activity of the Group is the manufacture and sale of plastic
MEBER  HRBREEAELmED injection moulding machines and related products, which is managed

BRI ETE - ANEBE TSI DY according to the geographical location of customers. Each of the
BIEZPHAE#HESD » ERKX—FIEME Group’s geographical segments, based on the location of customers,

EBEURTFELRNEPHEER

AEE S RENT -

(@) REIAERERS

(b) &%

(©) Eﬁﬂ/’iﬁl\l%( B4 E 35 M B
CFRER - SRR B o

FEEEAREE IS0 18 ’“*Eﬁfrfﬁ
ZWE R EETRIBEEPAEEE -

() BREFHESE
TRDAEE RIS B2 e

24 ETEE ABRAYE
¥ o

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009

88

represents a strategic business unit that offers products to customers
located in different geographical areas.

The Group’s geographical segments are as follows:

(@) Mainland China and Hong Kong;

(b) Taiwan; and

(c) Other overseas countries (including other Asian countries, the
Middle East, Americas and Europe).

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenue and assets
are attributed to the segments based on the location of the customers.

(a) Geographical segments based on the location of customers

The following tables present revenue, results, certain assets,
liabilities and expenditure information for the Group’s geographical

segments.
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5. 7EERE) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Geographical segments based on the location of customers
(continued)

(@) BREFHHSE(E)

REIEFH
Wan 8
Segment revenue
from external customers

REDE

Segment results

BEE Group
CEEFT) (HK$'000) 2009 2008 2009 2008
e NS Mainland China and Hong Kong 981,092 1,588,771 80,536 290,651
= Taiwan 188,902 257,159 15,070 25,636
HAFIMNIR Other overseas countries 433,113 470,206 42,308 74,787
1,603,107 2,316,136 137,914 391,074
R UA s Unallocated income and gains 2,493 3,823
ERKRES Corporate and unallocated
T expenses (33,273) (52,634)
BB RN Finance costs (4,668) (4,419)
i3y /NG] Share of profits less losses
s F R ES 1B of associates 1,386 1,130
Br AT A Profit before tax 103,852 338,974
EESE BESE
Segment assets Segment liabilities
BEE Group
CEEFT) (HK$'000) 2009 2008 2009 2008
PR AR B Mainland China and Hong Kong 2,478,527 2,508,207 365,296 447,133
= Taiwan 157,749 234,212 46,502 102,478
E I NER Other overseas countries 149,009 270,565 58,896 109,668
2,785,285 3,012,984 470,694 659,279
REFE A B Interests in associates 14,780 2,394 - -
RN EE Unallocated assets 85,278 103,561 - -
REHBIE Unallocated liabilities - - 62,495 66,756
2,885,343 3,118,939 533,189 726,035

89
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5. 7EERE) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(a) BEFMEDEE) (a) Geographical segments based on the location of customers
(continued)

Other segment information

WEREBH  HAFERSIH (KA BRI

Depreciation and Other non-cash Capital
amortization expenses/(income) expenditure
NEEH Group
(EETFT) (HK$'000) 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
alEPNE Mainland China
REE and Hong Kong 58,164 51,809 (39,510) 41,720 115,285 55,360
= Taiwan 2,017 2,190 677 2,850 1,742 761

E)FINER Other overseas countries 2,089 3,600  (1,000) 4,606 5,063 5,847

62,270 57,599 (39,833) 49,176 122,090 61,968

(b) REEMESE (b) Geographical segments based on the location of assets
BEEDE
Segment assets
KEH Group
CEEFT) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
K B KBS Mainland China and Hong Kong 2,480,722 2,572,890
B Taiwan 304,563 440,094
2,785,285 3,012,984
T NI Interests in associates 14,780 2,394
RN EE Unallocated assets 85,278 103,561
2,885,343 3,118,939

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009 90



B %5 2R 3R MY =E

—EEAF=A=1—H
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5. p¥EERE) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b) REEMBOEE) (b) Geographical segments based on the location of assets
(continued)
=53
Capital expenditure
REE Group
(BB For) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
AR R B BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 118,647 60,745
= Taiwan 3,443 1,223
122,090 61,968
(c) %28 (c) Business segments
REE% A 2 Wiz R EE TR Over 90% of the Group’s revenue and assets are attributable to
BEUENIHE TR ABEER the manufacture and sale of plastic injection moulding machines
Eit - WK D829 - and related products. Therefore, no analysis by business segment
is presented.
6. Wz 6. REVENUE
W (TFBAEE 2 558 IBF N2 Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net invoiced
BREFE  RERERESM M value of goods sold during the year, after allowances for returns and
TEEEBRRFEZRS ° trade discounts, excluding intra-group transactions.
91
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7. BRBEADGRA 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
REE 2R A B HBR GIA)T The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
H&IE -
(BEBTFor) (HK$'000) M7t Notes 2009 2008
EHFERA Cost of inventories sold 1,234,089 1,688,250
wE Depreciation 15 60,378 55,794
FER T ER R Recognition of prepaid land lease payments 16 1,892 1,805
HEMZE - BE K& Gain on disposal of items of
2 property, plant and equipment* (738) (84)
M - BE KR Write-off of items of
2 EFEE* property, plant and equipment* 15 26 58
A SRR E Dividend income from an available-for-sale
2 R B equity investment* - (37,800)
LT RIEFE Minimum lease payments under operating
HETZHRERELH leases of leasehold land and buildings 11,745 11,397
HE R FABEBR Research and development costs*** 16,806 20,550
Z B RN B < Auditors’ remuneration 1,703 1,731
BIRAMZL (EEM< Employee benefit expenses (excluding
BRON—B1529) - directors’ emoluments — note 9):
T& RH Wages and salaries 192,497 249,730
VARG RS (ST BB AR i B R Equity-settled share option expenses 8 46
IRIREFTEIER Pension scheme contributions 15,095 14,695
EINE 5 REEIRN Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of
B, CR{EREE) F5E** trade and bills receivables, net*** (14,725) 14,342
FERE, CRERE) Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of
SRR inventories, net** (24,425) 34,608
PE o 2= B FRE Foreign exchange differences, net*** (27,710) (31,492)
BN * Interest income* (2,493) (3,823)
SRR AE T Write-off of aged liabilities* (5,300) (12,042)
W ARG RIE” Proceeds from assignment of debts* (8,944) -
* ZEZEBEBRERGEMER 2 it *  These items are included in “Other income and gains, net” on the face of
WA K Wz FRE A o the consolidated income statement.
* ZIEBEBRERNGAKRTZRZIEEK **  This item is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
ARJA o income statement.
o ZEEA D EERNGEAERERZ Hit *** These items are included in “Other operating income/(expenses), net” on
I (ST FEIA - the face of the consolidated income statement.
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& A 8. FINANCE COSTS
rEH Group
CGEEFr) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
RAFAEZEHEEZ Interest on bank loans

RITERFE wholly repayable within five years 4,668 4,419
EEME 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

KREBBMARSMARRAA(BR
Prl)z LR R R EE AR GHIFE161
ik FRESMESHENT

Directors’ emoluments for the year disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and Section 161 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

AEH Group
(BT L) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
we Fees:
BiITES Executive directors - -
B IENITES Independent non-executive directors 676 525
HibBi< - Other emoluments:
N - AR E YR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 11,258 12,170
FRIFEMNTEAT Performance related bonuses - 15,447
LA PSR 2 - O 8 i B Equity-settled share option expenses 21 206
RN EH B Pension scheme contributions 48 48
12,003 28,396

HFE - RIEBEQRBEERE - EE
DEFREHENRB TASERERTHE
Bk HAERER P HRER M
3l ZEBBRENAFERBBHE
WaEAPER  HAFPERRE A
8 BREAFEZMBRROZEER
EERLLAEEMESNRKE -

93

In prior years, certain directors were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group, under the share option schemes of the
Company, further details of which are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been recognized
to the income statement over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’ emoluments
disclosures.
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9. EEME(#E) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) BIYFHTES (@) Independent non-executive directors
TR I FEBIIERTESHW The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the
R year were as follows:
EE Group
GEBTFT) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
BER B2 ¢ ST A Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN 150 172
Anish LALVANISE 4 Mr. Anish LALVANI 195 184
PRES BT Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN 180 169
FFELRE Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE 151 -
676 525
FR - WEEMIMS ST FBILIE There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-
HWITESE(ZEEN\FE #\E) - executive directors during the year (2008: Nil).
(b) HITESE (b) Executive directors
2009
B0
EHR MRS
ENFlz kB WERE Bifke
Salaries,  HMATEA BR  FHEMR
allowances Performance Equity-settled Pension Hemst
¢  and benefits related  share option scheme Total
(EEFT) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses  expenses contributions emoluments
BEMSL Dr. Chen CHIANG - 4,063 - - - 4063
BRiTT Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2481 - - 12 2,493
BERESE Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1,969 - - 12 1,981
BMRSE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,590 - - 12 1,602
REEEE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,155 - 21 12 1,188
- 11258 - 21 8 1137
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9. EEXME (&) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) BITES(E)

(b) Executive directors (continued)

2008
1T
BER MRAES ff
BENRE R HBRE Bihe
Salaries,  HMATEAL BR HE[:5
allowances Performance Equity-settled Pension  BA&#AG
#¢  and benefits related  share option scheme Total
(EEFT) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses  expenses contributions emoluments
BEEL Dr. Chen CHIANG - 4,490 5974 79 - 10,543
EBiat Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2,757 5,830 53 12 8,652
BEBRE Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 2,019 2,501 26 12 4,558
EMRSE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,704 642 26 12 2,384
REERE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,200 500 2 12 1,734
- 12,170 15,447 206 48 27871

EREIRERMEMEE  SWITE
EEREREYRRE BEEIR
BEBZLTRERHS30% Bk
BEA - BRRAERRZEELA
FEARFE20%  2HH_ZEE/)N
F+-A—HEAES  BEEAEE
¥R ERNITESRAG BN
FEEJE%E °©

FA > ARAMBESITEEN =
TEE=F=-A+-BREZEBR
#FE151,668,000/k N~ F 2 & iR
B FBER MBS HRRAOM 31
5l o ZEBREN R FERRBES
R PR - EAHERERH
BEtE - BREAFEZMHHRE
%R R LAEEHENH

= o

I

FA AREVEE TEEHE A
SR MAREE S ERINAR
SR $REN - SBERAR(E -
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Due to the adverse effects of the global financial tsunami, the
executive directors had voluntarily agreed to effect a temporary
salary reduction of 30% of basic salary in the cases of Dr. Chen
CHIANG and Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and 20% of basic salary in the
cases of Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
and Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG, all with effect from 1 December 2008
until the business of the Group recovers and when the executive
directors consider appropriate.

During the year, two directors of the Company exercised share
options, which had been granted on 11 March 2003 to acquire
1,668,000 ordinary shares of the Company, details of which are
set out in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value of
such options, which has been recognized to the income statement
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the directors’ emoluments disclosures.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office.
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10. EEEREME 2 EE

11.
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BTSRRI REOR T

BiIE

AEBFANARNEBE ZERBUEN

L E B F 1S B 1216 5% B¢ & 1F [ 1
e AEERBE_TEN\F=RA=1
—HILFEEEMRNE L Z BRTOE
M BORBERBBMSHIELREME - &
BEZEBFNSHER-_ZEN\E —F
THERNFEREY  SCEAREE
“ETAF= A=+ R UIEFERRR
BB 2FERBUEN - Bt 28
FBIRAE A S B E EBERR,
LA 2 RIT RN - 2R RER -

WRITR KRGS -

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

11.

The five highest paid employees during the year included five (2008:
five) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in note 9 to the
financial statements.

TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Hong
Kong profits tax has not been provided for the year ended 31 March
2008 as the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during that year. The lower Hong Kong profits tax rate is
effective from the year of assessment 2008/2009, and so is applicable
to the assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the whole year ended
31 March 2009. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations
and practices in respect thereof.

TEE Group
(GEEFr) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
BIHA - Current:
RELBIEZH Charge for the year
BHA Hong Kong 16 -
E bl Elsewhere 20,285 38,991
BAFEDIR (ZB)EME  Under/(over) provision in prior years 2,363 (807)
JRIE — ff5E29 Deferred — note 29 (5,964) (20,055)
REFHRBEZ Tax charge for the year 16,700 18,129
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11. B\ (&) 11. TAX (continued)

SRR AT E F LA B AN ) R EL
RAEIFFERR,/RERER 2 EE R K
B(HREHI2%E25%) 2 HIBEXE > LA
KRB B ERGTB 2 FHIA 2 $R 0

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
using the statutory rates, ranging from 12% to 25%, for the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled
to the tax expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

T
AEE Group
(BT or) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
BRA R Profit before tax 103,852 338,974
AT EGTE 2 IR Tax at the statutory tax rates 17,132 86,935
&R 17 kit 77 s Tax concessions/lower tax rates for

ZRIEER, BUER R specific provinces and local authority (10,511) (62,060)
TR G B) ¥ B 9IIREFR 18 Effect on opening deferred tax

2R of changes in rates 821 (9,549)
REENFEARLFIEH Effect of tax on the equity transfer of

([ )T B A R) 2 Bt the People’s Republic of China

EREDIE HE (“PRC”) subsidiaries of the Group 10,000 -
AR 2 2 H Expenses not deductible for tax 11,397 10,071
DA Z WA Income not subject to tax (16,269) (10,700)
RMER 2 NFETIARE Tax losses for the year not recognized 2,674 6,088
B A AR TEE 18 Tax losses from previous periods utilized (907) (1,849)
3@ HAR BN AR 18 Adjustments in respect of current tax of

2 previous periods 2,363 (807)
REFHIEBZ L Tax charge for the year 16,700 18,129

AEBETRPEAEL S
RONEBEDLE  ZEMBRARZEM
EENKLFEERLHANTEMRE
B MARERZ =ZFRIERR50% 2 F

BIFF1SH -

ZHBAF

PRC for the following three years.

97

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises and are exempted from the income
tax of the PRC for two years starting from the first profitable year of
operations, and are entitled to a 50% relief from the income tax of the

2 HESEEAT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED



A 75 45 e i

—EEAF=A=+—H

11.

12,

B (#)

RZZEZLFE=A+H  2HEARRK
i‘%j(ELﬂq:.H:%ﬁﬁ fﬁﬁi(f%ﬁm%
FisBiE]D) REBRR ST LF+=
RANBREMAEHEGRER - 8 TN
F—HA—BRER - BREBEFBFESE fR
A N RINERENMRETHER
TNF—H—HEBE—5R25% ° %ﬁ’ﬁ :
PRI EFTEBUERMAR LY ZE
*EF'%M%%F%&%H%% SWERPE

TR ES B EMG
méﬂfjjﬂi A—R&E#zER
FANREENEZHIZEIS% - B A
BEA—BRETEREESSEEMEHE
MEDR R - ATBEZBZIAR
B BEZERETEERERRLE

RATESIFE ABGEER

BE_ZTTNF=-_A=1T—"HULFE
ARRABERFEA ARBEGEE RN E
ERARBEMBRERD A EFE
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4E#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

11.

12.
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TAX (continued)

The National People’s Congress approved the Corporate Income Tax
(“CIT") Law of the PRC (the “New CIT Law”) on 16 March 2007 and the
State Council announced the Detail Implementation Regulations on 6
December 2007, which was effective from 1 January 2008. According
to the New CIT Law, the income tax rates for both domestic and foreign
investment enterprises have been unified at 25% effective from 1
January 2008. However, for enterprises which were established before
the publication of the New CIT Law and were entitled to preferential
treatments of reduced CIT tax rate granted by relevant tax authorities,
the new CIT rate will be gradually increased from the preferential rate
to 25% within 5 years after the effective date of the New CIT Law on
1 January 2008. Enterprises that are currently entitled to exemptions
from or reductions in the standard income tax rate for a fixed term may
continue to enjoy such treatment until the fixed term expires.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2009 includes a profit of HK$11,099,000
(2008: HK$235,742,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 32).
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13.

14.

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2009

BRE 13. DIVIDENDS
(CB#ToT) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
ERE AT mE - Additional final dividend

ZFBINRHRRR B due to exercise of share options 453 189
R EARR B g TR R Interim dividend of HK$0.02

BH0.027L ( ZFENF ¢ (2008: HK$0.08) per ordinary share

75#0.087T ) 12,577 50,028
E AR T T M EE A Additional interim dividend

ZEEINR AR B due to exercise of share options - 59
BEABRESLT AR Proposed final dividend of HK$0.05

BH0.057T ( ZTT)\F ¢ (2008: HK$0.174) per ordinary share

PE¥50.1747T ) 31,442 108,964

44,472 159,240

AEFEFZRPBEALARRTBRR
FERRERITZ BERBFRGHAER T A
FE -

FAREBREARGESRAR

SBRRERZNTHIRIEFAAQ IR
A A E(E AN E i F) 7 #85,786,000
(=T T )\ F : 7 317,829,000
TTI)RFRNEETEBRBR 2 METF
¥ #628,595,6770%( — T & N\ F :
625,175,677/ ) 5T E F15 ©

ESTE D PARPRYisS GEANFIN/NGIL Tt
A AFE(HARERERFE#85,786,0007T
(ZZZ\F : 5¥317,829,0007T) &
DN 15 628,815,151 ( — T ZE N\
F 1 628,602,8168%) L@ (RIFTE S
BREARBFIRNTAFERERITLBERZ
HNHE S 9 81628,595,6770% ( —ZEN
F :625,175,6770% ) RIBRFAKRE
TEZBRES 2B IFREMETFE
ZINEFHE219 4740 ( — ST N\ F
3,427, 1390%) L @A) FTE RS -

14.
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The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the Group’s
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year of
HK$85,786,000 (2008: HK$317,829,000) and on the weighted
average number of 628,595,677 (2008: 625,175,677) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the Group’s
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year of
HK$85,786,000 (2008: HK$317,829,000) and on the weighted
average number of 628,815,151 (2008: 628,602,816) ordinary
shares, being the weighted average number of 628,595,677 (2008:
625,175,677) ordinary shares in issue during the year as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation and the weighted average number
of 219,474 (2008: 3,427,139) ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all share options
outstanding during the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2009

KAEREL 1 BE -
kREF R HeEE -~ R
HERF REMERE
Freehold Plant,
land and machinery,
buildings, FEIR furniture
rEE Group and leasehold Construction and other “Et
(B#For) (HK$'000) buildings  in progress  equipment Total
RZZEZN\FMA—H At 1 April 2008
B AR Cost 594,886 38,275 783,641 1,416,802
2itihE Accumulated depreciation (161,562) - (546,048) (707,610)
BREDFE Net carrying amount 433,324 38,275 237,593 709,192
RZZEZENFWOA—H - At 1 April 2008, net of
B EFTITE accumulated depreciation 433,324 38,275 237,593 709,192
NE Additions 643 85,785 35,662 122,090
HE Disposals - - (324) (324)
B Write-off - - (26) (26)
4 Transfers - (10,175) 10,175 -
RFEE Depreciation provided
ERE during the year (15,531) - (44,847) (60,378)
PE 5 % Exchange realignment (3,977) 913 4 252 1,188
RZZEZAF=A=+—H "  At31 March 2009, net of
B R2EITE accumulated depreciation 414,459 114,798 242,485 771,742
RZEZhF=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2009
B AR Cost 591,535 114,798 827,521 1,533,854
BEHNE Accumulated depreciation (177,076) - (585,036) (762,112)
REFE Net carrying amount 414,459 114,798 242,485 771,742
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2009

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

31 March 2008

KAFERELH# BE
kEF R HeEE - R
HEETF REMRE
Freehold Plant,
land and machinery,
buildings, EEIR furniture
rEE Group and leasehold Construction and other st
(BEMFr) (HK$'000) buildings  in progress  equipment Total
RZEZ+FMHA—H At 1 April 2007
(DN Cost 547,045 8,379 701,552 1,256,976
2:tihE Accumulated depreciation (138,982) - (467,822) (606,304)
BREFE Net carrying amount 408,063 8,379 233,730 650,172
R_ZZLFMOA—H At 1 April 2007, net of
Bk ETHINE accumulated depreciation 408,063 8,379 233,730 650,172
NE Additions 7,436 28,957 22,057 58,450
e Disposals - - (71) (71)
FT8H Write-off - - (58) (58)
=R Transfer . (94) 94 _
KEE Depreciation provided
ERH during the year (15,294) - (40,500) (55,794)
P& A Exchange realignment 33,119 1,033 22,341 56,493
RZZFZNF=ZA=+—H "  At31 March 2008, net of
Bk RN E accumulated depreciation 433,324 38,275 237,593 709,192
RZZEENF=A=+—H At 31 March 2008
AR Cost 594,886 38,275 783,641 1,416,802
2:irE Accumulated depreciation (161,562) - (546,048) (707,610)
BRMEFE Net carrying amount 433,324 38,275 237,593 709,192
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REB 2 HETRUNEBIAIMNOE -
WA IROFFA -

BN LA S B A KA REL
LET  MEEBFTZOMIT

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group’s construction in progress was situated outside Hong Kong

and was held under medium term leases.

The Group’s freehold land and buildings and leasehold buildings

included above are analyzed as follows:

AEE Group
(BETFor) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
FIFsAMRLMET Leasehold buildings held under:
BB 2 R EIRY Medium term leases in Hong Kong 38,641 41,862
FEEBUIMEE 2 PEIRY)  Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 289,894 293,701
328,535 335,563
EBEBAIME 2 Freehold land and buildings
KA ZEREL M RAEF held outside Hong Kong 85,924 97,761
414,459 433,324

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Company
(HK$’000)

B R E MR A
Furniture and
other equipment

—ERNF=A=1T—H

R-ZTZN\FHA—B

31 March 2009

At 1 April 2008,

Bk EFTTE net of accumulated depreciation 836
RE Addition 14
& Disposal (13)
NEFIERE Depreciation provided during the year (99)
R-ZEZHAF=A=+—8" At 31 March 2009,

EHREFHTE net of accumulated depreciation 738
R-ZETZNF=A=1+—H At 31 March 2009

B%N Cost 6,972

E5thE Accumulated depreciation (6,234)
BREFE Net carrying amount 738
—EEN\EFE=A=+—H 31 March 2008
RZZZLFMA—H - At 1 April 2007,

EHREFHTE net of accumulated depreciation 936
NEFITERE Depreciation provided during the year (100)
R-ZEENF=A=+—8 " At 31 March 2008,

EHREFHTE net of accumulated depreciation 836
R-ZEZENF=A=+—H At 31 March 2008

BN Cost 11,541

E5HhE Accumulated depreciation (10,705)
BREFE Net carrying amount 836
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16. B L HEERK

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

TEE Group
(CBEToT) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
M A—B/EREE Carrying amount at 1 April 58,758 54,288
NE Additions - 3,518
REZ R Recognized during the year (1,892) (1,805)
PE 5 FAEE Exchange realignment 765 2,757
R=ZA=+—BHEEE Carrying amount at 31 March 57,631 58,758
REE Y BEERT R Current portion included in deposits,

TR 3B & B AL U AR 3R prepayments and other receivables (1,896) (1,878)
JERZEREL Non-current portion 55,735 56,380

AEEE DR AEMN LEER

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments included above are analyzed

DT - as follows:
AEH Group
(BETor) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
s A EN L EERK ¢ Prepaid land lease payments held under:
BB 2R EIRY Medium term leases in Hong Kong 24,002 24,619
EEBLIMEE Z P EIZZ%)  Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 33,629 34,139
57,631 58,758
17. 58 17. GOODWILL
REH Group
(BT T) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
EES Goodwill 94,931 94,931
104
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17. %58 (#) 17. GOODWILL (continued)

EEREE

HEEASHELECHEEHETAETH
BARETRENH - B AT ZA]
WEICREIREFEREE GTEERT -
EAANRSRETENARFIBIE
HREM - IWFEABEBENENETERK
BIEBHEERRITIRE - BKRBEE
MEERMTERURBEFENR
/e REBEROER - ReRETEAAM
FRHITIR R EA6% (ZZEZENF 1 6%)
(FAD) - AR B AR ZETR
B o FERREFTAZ EEEEBINTE
BHERHER -

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated
to certain subsidiaries for impairment testing. The recoverable amount
of the subsidiaries is determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering a
five-year period. The key assumptions for the value in use calculation
include the expected growth rate and discount rate. The financial
budgets are prepared reflecting actual and prior year performance and
development expectations. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 6% (2008: 6%) which is before tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the relevant subsidiaries. The values assigned to key
assumptions are consistent with external information sources.

18. KK B A B = 18.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
NN Company
CEMTFor) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
JE LMD - R AE Unlisted shares, at cost 172,370 172,370
BB B 2 B BR AR Due from subsidiaries 1,033,946 1,011,533
FEASHB 8 2 J1BR 3K Due to subsidiaries (509,513) (367,254)
696,803 816,649

R B A B 2 AR R R N B
SERFRIER - EETHB AR Z KRR
BRI TS M RYEA S, o [
BREZ R TI KB LB AR A
FEERENER - ARREERER
RI2ERARNEBRNZEDH

MR-ZZEZHAFE=A=+—H #ET
B B ) 2 FEUR AR SR AT R R (B B AL
78 54,200,000 ( ZEE )\ F : B
75,100,0007T) °

FERN - sEKE THE QR RKER
8 181 5 1 20,900,0007T( ZFF )\
F A %12,900,0007T) - HARREE
7% 75 #150,009,0007t( ZEF /\ 4 :
78 #285,262,0007T ) ° & 18 1 5 2] 1
EEZEREMBARZEERE -

TEMNBARZFHBRIBEIINAER
ol -
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The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed terms
of repayment. The balances with certain subsidiaries bear interest
at prevailing market rates. As the balances with subsidiaries arose
from advances to/from the subsidiaries for the purpose of operational
financing, the Company do not intend to demand settlement of the
amounts involved within 12 months from the balance sheet date.

As at 31 March 2009, there was an impairment of HK$54,200,000
(2008: HK$75,100,000) made on amounts due from certain
subsidiaries.

During the year, write-back of impairment losses of HK$20,900,000
(2008: HK$12,900,000) was recognized for amounts due from certain
subsidiaries, with a total gross carrying amount of HK$150,009,000
(2008: HK$285,262,000). The write-back of impairment provision had
taken into account the net assets values of the subsidiaries.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 136 to 139.
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19. Rt E N AR

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

TEE Group

(BE¥Fr) (HK$'000) 2009 2008

JE(REEFE Share of net assets 14,780 13,096

R —E N RIERER Due from an associate - 43

FEHE N AR Due to associates - (10,745)
14,780 2,394

BENBZERBREAERE - &
BR—MRZ+RAZMN(ZZETNEF

A=+—8: BEEEEEKR) - 5t
“EFAF=ZA=1+—8 " EK
— B 8 X 7] BR 308 45,0007t & FE 1F
BA AT BRFB 117,435,000 2 9 Bl
BARKE S REREARENE SR
ERERA - D BIR B HRK M 23
K2687 o

= |1 oem SE

2

’

PA NS B 2 Bt R B35 A o B TR
KRR BIRRERE 2 BEEA -

B AT FEARDT

The balances with the associates are unsecured, interest-free and

normally settled at a term of 30 days (31 March 2008: no fixed terms

of repayment). Accordingly, as at 31 March 2009, the amount due

from an associate of HK$45,000 and the amounts due to associates
of HK$17,435,000 are included in the trade and bills receivables and
the trade and bills payables, as disclosed in notes 23 and 26 to the

financial statements, respectively.

All of the Group’s associates are corporate entities registered in the

PRC and operating in Mainland China.

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

FEEEMN

BRITRAEE EZEDL

BRER Percentage of
Nominal value of ownership interest FEHEK
£ issued share/ attributable Principal
Name paid-up capital to the Group activities
BB 1L T = M S A R %711,520,000 25 BLENHE
BRAT] US$1,520,000 KRS E M
Foshan Fu Xiong Foundry Manufacture and sale
Company, Limited of iron casting products
1L TR = T 2 71800,000 25 IR S
BEBR AR US$800,000 Dormant

Foshan Shunde Fu Xiong Machinery
Company, Limited

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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19.

20.

REHE QTR (H)

it

(1) ERRARZEREB L KGRI ELATH
KAV BB PRI AR AR E R
AEZ

(2) PRARNU=RA=+—HRHEKREEH
WA IR AR B B -

TREFIAR BB A AR 2 AR
BRANLERRE

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2009

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes:

(1) The above companies are not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or
other member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

(2) The above companies use 31 March as their reporting date to conform with

their holding company’s reporting date.

The following table illustrates the summarized financial information of
the Group’s associates extracted from their management accounts:

(BEMTIT) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
BE Assets 101,045 123,182
afE Liabilities (41,923) (70,801)
Uzt Revenues 92,778 110,151
piel Profit 5,544 4518
AHHEERKRE 20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY INVESTMENTS

REH Group

(B¥Tor) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
JEEMIRE - A ANE Unlisted investments, at cost 170,539 170,539
ME Impairment (46,482) (46,482)
wst Total 124,057 124,057

I EAT G SR A AR AR — A
EARRMERENFEARE AR
7l o

R-ZERAE=ZA=+—8 @1~
FLTHEZREZABERATFEZGEE
BEBEX BEARRESRAERLE
A S EERATE MxIELmE
W ERKASE - HEREEA B
124,057,0007c( — 2 )\ & : B &
124,057,0007¢) °

The unlisted available-for-sale equity investments represent an
investment in a Taiwanese company and an indirect interest in a joint
venture company in Mainland China.

As at 31 March 2009, an unlisted equity investment with a carrying
amount of HK$124,057,000 (2008: HK$124,057,000) was stated
at cost because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot
be measured reliably.
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22.

23.

Notes to Financial Statements

ThFE=ZA=+—H 31 March 2009
BZEIHKRE 21. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS
rEHE Group
(EMFor) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
SRR E ¢ Held-to-maturity investments:
ELETREIR Unlisted held-to-maturity
[(GEE2 7 %N commercial papers, at cost 7,800 7,800
BE Impairment (7,800) (7,800)
=zE 22.INVENTORIES
rEHE Group
(GE#For) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
Ex Raw materials 277,929 317,376
ER2R Work in progress 209,633 269,051
P o Finished goods 216,747 122,851
704,309 709,278
EWESREERR 23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
AEE Group
(CBEToT) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
W E 5 R EHBIRR Trade and bills receivables 578,537 950,398
A Impairment (62,455) (76,074)
516,082 874,324

EFZBSER—RBRERS ~ R1T
ERLEARE - AREREERNEF
ZBAERBENREERREER  FOE
ERR/NTXR  BRETARGRSNE
Rz &P - AIEREGEER - A&
[ SR B B TR SR AR 15 5 16k N R LA B
R BREERBREERE -

ERN AW EASENRKE S K
SERABRXEDBE AKX - 808
BEANEHEERR - BRRESHRE
IRBR AL -

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Trading terms with customers are either cash on delivery, bank bills
or on credit. Customers are granted credit at the discretion of the
Group, subject to their respective business strength and creditability.
The average credit period is 90 days and extension of credit period is
made for customers with good trading and repayment records. The
Group adopts strict control policies over credit terms and receivables
that serve to minimize credit risk.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and
bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade and bills receivables
are non-interest-bearing.
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23.BREZREBERR(E) 23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

FEWE 5 K RIB IR TR E B R Z Ehan

The movements in impairment allowance for trade and bills receivables

Nk are as follows:

REE Group

(GE#For) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
M A—H At 1 April 76,074 65,177
BRI E R AR A Impairment losses charged/

AR, (A (write-back of impairment credited)

RYRERE) JF58 to the income statement, net (14,725) 14,342
IR e B SRR Amount written off as uncollectible - (7,777)
PE 5 FEE Exchange realignment 1,106 4,332
W=A=+—H At 31 March 62,455 76,074

ELARYEE S ERERRFORERE
T EEEEERRERENEKE S
B8R A 556,980,000t ( Z T F N\ -
7 %61,074,0000T ) - HEEE R E
#61,401,000L( Z 22 N\ F : B K
64,578,0007T) » EEERIRERE
JEWE 5 R EBERFOL KA ERAE 2
HR R IEHR AU E ER0 FE M AR R 2 B
F o ARELEHZFEHRT A TR
M EAD pRER 2 ¥ o

IR R B RERELE Z M RIBERR
ZERE DT

Included in the above impairment allowance for trade and bills
receivables is an allowance for individually impaired trade receivables of
HK$56,980,000 (2008: HK$61,074,000) with a gross carrying amount
of HK$61,401,000 (2008: HK$64,578,000). The individually impaired
trade and bills receivables relate to customers that were in default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

AEE Group

(GEBTFr) (HK$'000) 2009 2008

REER (W A8 BASORE) Current (neither past due nor impaired) 335,172 546,023

Il A N Less than 90 days past due 67,482 176,622

BEANT—Z—BNTX 91 to 180 days past due 48,536 107,104

BEEA—EN\TX Over 180 days past due 64,892 44,575
516,082 874,324
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23.

24.

FAEZA=+—H

BWE S REERR(E)

I ARIE B SRE 2 FEUGRIR S J st R
BN RS2 TP -

EE MBI ERE < RUGRIRRDS S &
THAEBAERFRXFHTHNB LR
EREEERYEBEAEE - A%EE
SR AR 28U E - B AL A RS
FEERIE R E R -

P 5 B AR R o R
B AT 2 B 45,0007 ZFE N
F ) ENRERRAREL b
EEFIR -

JEWE 5 L EBERNE R BRRPEX
PR B AR A < RIREEE
#14,321,0007C( =T )N\F : |)BE
A - AEERT B AR BB
EMBARBEHZETRERNRE -

T4 BNRERLEEKER

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to customers
for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables is an amount due
from an associate of HK$45,000 (2008: Nil) which is repayable on
similar credit terms to those offered to the major customers of the
Group.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables are pledged bills
receivables of certain subsidiaries operating in Mainland China of
HK$14,321,000 (2008: Nil) for securing certain bills payables issued by
financial institutions in Mainland China on behalf of the subsidiaries.

24. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AEH ¥ NN
Group Company
(GEMFor) (HK$'000) 2009 2008 2009 2008
& RIERFRIE Deposits and prepayments 35,633 34,671 417 420
B ERK Prepaid land lease payments,
EHIER > current portion 1,896 1,878 - -
E b pEUER R Other receivables 28,768 24951 308 495
66,297 61,500 725 915

HZEEEMEBEARNRE - BHTOE
BB EW K B E S RGO 8k 2 FR UK
BRAK o

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009

None of these assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets
included in these balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.
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25. RERBITHEE

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2009

25.CASH AND BANK BALANCES

rEE AT
Group Company
(BEETFor) (HK$'000) 2009 2008 2009 2008
W& RIRTER Cash and bank balances 407,369 295,777 4,574 4,490
A F SR EE B Bank deposits with
[RERm H original maturity of
T~R=MEA less than three months
2 TEHATE R when acquired 10,957 34,021 - -
RERRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 418,326 329,798 4,574 4,490
FAF R BB B Bank deposits with
[REFm B original maturity of
iR = {E H more than three months
ZEMTESR (B17£1)  when acquired (Note 1) 27,264 31,946 - -
1BIR© MIRITHETT Total cash and bank balances 445,590 361,744 4,574 4,490

BT -

Witz

ZEFREETRTERELEZ
BT 2 B AT S B B #27,264,0007T
ZZTT)\F ¢ B¥31,946,0007T)
EIIRITER - BIEERS BIARE
ETHBREBGTETHE=ENE

e
A

ROTERARITEREFFZH A
KERIFS - RFAEEBRLOFH
Ko MEZH-REZFATED
R EAE BT AR - I ARS HATE HATE K
BREDAE

Note 1:

Note 2:

111

The balance included pledged bank deposits of certain subsidiaries
China of HK$27,264,000 (2008:
HK$31,946,000) for securing certain loans granted by certain

operating in  Mainland

financial institutions in Mainland China to certain third parties.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates.
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26. ENESREBRH

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

26.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

REBE R ZENE S R ERERER 2 BRER An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the balance

DR - sheet date is as follows:

AEE Group

(EEFor) (HK$'000) 2009 2008

REHR Current 77,000 321,172

—EhTK 1 to 90 days 48,354 69,035

Nt+—XRE—EBNTX 91 to 180 days 121,595 6,341

BE—a N tx Over 180 days 29,623 13,825
276,572 410,373

FER B 5 RBEERLWFE - FER
B REBERENE P REEMNEE QT
FRIEE 17,435,000 ( — T Z )\ ¢
/) ENFERE=TRAZN - #%
RS A RIRH T EEZER AN
BRI ©

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. Included in the
trade and bills payables are trade payables of HK$17,435,000 (2008:
Nil) due to associates which are repayable within 30 days, which
represents similar credit terms to those offered by the associates to
their major customers.



Bk ML Notes to Financial Statements

—EEAF=—A=+—H 31 March 2009
27. HttE R R ESTEE 27.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
rEH ¥ /N
Group Company
(E#For) (HK$'000) 2009 2008 2009 2008
BUEET & Deposits received 53,414 70,279 - 36
EEtaER Accruals and
HEtaE other liabilities 140,708 178,627 4,776 19,104
194,122 248,906 4,776 19,140
SRAEMEMNEZNETEENERE The financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals are
B PFFE o non-interest-bearing.
28.R1ITER » |IEF 28. BANK LOANS, UNSECURED
BEFIR
Effective
REH Group interest rate 25
(E#For) (HK$'000) (%) Maturity 2009 2008
IRITEREE P Bank loans repayable
—FR within one year 1.7 (2008: 3.1) 2009 37,864 27,814
REE 7 mIKHRITEFRLUE BRI =t The Group’s unsecured bank loans are at floating rates.
g o
113
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29, JEERE

FA - EEHRAEABN

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

29. DEFERRED TAX

BEZHHT The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year

are as follows:

EEHEEE Deferred tax liabilities
HERRERR
THERHTE
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of MEH
EE Group related B BIEEE Withholding st
(E¥FT) (HK$000) depreciation Provisions  Tax losses tax Total
RZET+FMNA—H At 1 April 2007 2,551 (1,757) (729) 10,646 10,711
AEER R, Deferred tax charged/(credited)
(FTA) 2 EHERIIE to the income statement
SFR(WEEIL) during the year, net (note 11) (137) (808) (115) 10,407 9,347
BB AT Withholding tax paid on
eI o repatriation of earnings
from overseas subsidiaries - - - (4,647) (4,647)
P H SR Exchange realignment - (332) - 1,068 736
ZEENE At 31 March 2008 and
E)E] s et =3 1 April 2008 2,414 (2,897) (844) 17,474 16,147
ZZETN\FNA—A
AFERRERMG Deferred tax charged/(credited)
(FTA) ZERERITE to the income statement
SFR(HEEIL during the year, net (note 11) 7 2167 (44) (4,869) (2,739)
PEH AR Exchange realignment - 447 - (1,686) (1,239)
RZZTTNEF Gross deferred tax liabilities
—A=1+—H recognized in the
Zﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁéfé\ﬁﬁ,\%i’i consolidated balance sheet
EREBIEAERE at 31 March 2009 2,421 (283) (888) 10,919 12,169
114
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29. IR IR ()

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2009

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

ELEBREE Deferred tax assets
FERZERE
HEE
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
KEE Group related B BIEEE met
(BE#%Fr) (HK$'000) depreciation Provisions Tax losses Total
—EE+FIUA—H At 1 April 2007 (288) 36,737 122 36,571
REFRREFRFTA Deferred tax credited
ZIEERIRFRE - B to the income statement
RERRENEETE during the year, net, including
Ayt a tax credit of HK$10,226,000
75%10,226,0007T due to the effect of a change in
(Hfz£11) the effective tax rates (note 11) 164 25,001 4,237 29,402
bEE 54 FA Exchange realignment - 3,555 12 3,567
RZETNF At 31 March 2008 and
ZA=+—-Bk 1 April 2008
“EENFHA—H (124) 65,293 4371 69,540
AEERUREERA,/ (F0BR)  Deferred tax credited/(charged)
ZERETIEEE - B to the income statement
AEBRRENERTE during the year, net, including
Z AR AR a tax charge of HK$625,000
7#625,0007T due to the effect of a change in
(Bz£11) the effective tax rate (note 11) 88 (12,776) 15,913 3,225
PEH AR Exchange realignment - 1,457 99 1,556
RZBENF Gross deferred tax assets
=A=+—H recognized in the
ZHERANGEEERRER consolidated balance sheet
BEBREERE at 31 March 2009 (36) 53,974 20,383 74,321
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29, IEFERLIE (&) 29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

RAEBIMEEBBRENREBRBE
232,260,000t ZEZ N F: B
217,737,0007T ) KR 78 AR B K BE A
#106,627,0007C( — 2T N\ F : B
41,799,0007T) - FIEIK EHER1S 2B 1R
ZARBEZERTEN - RR_ZF
NEFZA=+—BRABZERT AT
TR ] AEE RN BB RBAFIE
B85 #5,382,0007L( Z T \F : B
#£5,113,0007T) FJR A H B K PE IR B)
A TEE 188 81,532,000 L( —_ 2=
N\ : B#17,484,0007T) 50 - R
FRRIE RS E—EBREE - WETER
JERREL s A AT LK AR T S 18 - R sk
ZEFIERRELERIEEE - TEARER
RIERIEES IR - BIEE25,096,000
TT(ZEE)N\F : B#24,315,0007T)#)
HIEEESNAE 2 @bl - EMEsiE
ALAERREARTE -
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RIINE R ERINEIR EETIRIR B RS
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The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$232,260,000
(2008:  HK$217,737,000) and in  Mainland China  of
HK$106,627,000 (2008: HK$41,799,000) that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Except for tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$5,382,000 (2008: HK$5,113,000) and in Mainland China of
HK$81,532,000 (2008: HK$17,484,000) as at 31 March 2009 to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax losses can be utilized, deferred tax assets
have not been recognized in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in those companies that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilized. Included in unrecognized
tax losses are losses of HK$25,096,000 (2008: HK$24,315,000) that
will expire within 5 years. Other losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.

Pursuant to the New CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement was
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rates during the year were 5% or 10%.

At 31 March 2009, no deferred tax has been recognized for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group'’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute their
earnings accrued after 1 January 2008 in the foreseeable future.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognized totalled approximately
HK$120,429,000 and HK$1,344,000 at 31 March 2009, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2009

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

RER_ZFTNFRA-+TERETZ
BEMSTUE  ENEEZFAEHRRE
G E25% THZE20% BT —TF—
H—BREE -

A5 R R B 2 AR 3 4 A (A
BRzTE -

According to an amendment to Income Tax Law of Taiwan on 27 May
2009, the income tax rate for profit-seeking enterprise will decrease
from 25% to 20% effective from 1 January 2010.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

[N 30. SHARE CAPITAL
(E¥FT) (HK$°000) 2009 2008
JERE Authorized:
1,000,000,0000% & 38 Ak 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares

FIE0.107T of HK$0.10 each 100,000 100,000
BREITEREEHT Issued and fully paid:
628,833,600/% (ZZZFENF : 628,833,600 (2008:

626,227,6000%) &A% 626,227,600) ordinary shares

FIE0.107T of HK$0.10 each 62,883 62,623

FA - BEFT72,606,0000% i ik # 2 32
BRASERRB%E1.988T21TEE
EATE(ESL) - Bt ABRED
7 #5,180,0007T( A 5T A BT HI)
HETHREEEK0.10TZ E B
2,606,000% -

117

During the year, the subscription rights attaching to 2,606,000 share
options were exercised at the exercise price of HK$1.988 per ordinary
share (note 31), resulting in the issue of 2,606,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before issue expenses, of
approximately HK$5,180,000 in aggregate.

R HESEEAT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ZETNF=ZRA=+—H 31 March 2009
30. A& (&) 30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
RN BB BT E RIS A E B 2F 15 0 Details of the movements in the Company’s issued ordinary share
N capital are as follows:
28T 28T 8l
ZEREAE ;&N R E R
Number of Issued Share
ordinary shares share premium wst
in issue capital account Total
BT T BT T JEMTF T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZEE-FNA—H At 1 April 2007 624,163,600 62,416 498,308 560,724
T 2 B Share options exercised 2,064,000 207 3,146 3,353
RZZETN\F At 31 March 2008 and
=A=+—HAk 1 April 2008
—EEN\FHA—H 626,227,600 62,623 501,454 564,077
TETTIE 2 fE AR i Share options exercised 2,606,000 260 4,920 5,180
RZZTTNF At 31 March 2009
—A=+—H 628,833,600 62,883 506,374 569,257
31. B 31. SHARE OPTIONS
RIBRARNRIN —_ZEZE_FNA-1+=H Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting
BIT7REEFAE BB T@ERE of the Company held on 23 August 2002, the Company adopted a
= ANARE R —EEREETEI([ 2002 share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”). Share options under the
FHEl]) - RIF2002F 2R H 2 BEAX 2002 Scheme do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
W T4 TR B AR B sk AR R A vote at shareholders’ meetings.

T EREZHER
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—ETAF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2009
31.ERREE) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
2002F HE| 2 FHIBYIE T ¢ The particulars of the 2002 Scheme are as follows:
(@ B® (@) Purpose
HEBWR 2 2EARAEEEL As rewards or incentives for the contribution or potential contribution
¥ alVEE BBk T LA B2 M B - to the Group from the eligible participants.
(b) BEA (b) Participants
(i) ANEBEEMA S skERIZER R (i) (a) any director (whether executive or non-executive,
H(IRBE2002F T2l 2 F &) including any independent non-executive director) and
SRR RIEH 2 E A A employee (whether full time or part time) of, or
2

(a) EAEECTHIHTR
ST REAEBIE
HITEE)RIEE (THh2
2RSIER) -

(b) HEREFHIERA (b) any individual for the time being seconded to work for,
any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder (as

defined under the 2002 Scheme) or any company controlled
by a controlling shareholder;

(i) FHBEAEBE (TR B AT (i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group
A% % B8 3k 12 BRI B 3 | 2 (F{a] or any controlling shareholder or any company controlled by a
NAFTBETZINESES controlling shareholder; and
N4

(i) ANEB T 8 kT4 I (i) (a) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
% B B B 428 A% IS BR A2 ) 2 A1) contractor or distributor of,

NS

() EREBREIERHE 5
AHRERREAN  RERE

119 R M A R AR CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Eﬂf

(d) EmzRiEzEREP

F2002FFHEIME - 2EHABRE
A — 32 3% 2 o7 550 8 DA L (T 47 52 B
SHEEESZ ERRF -

AFRITEBERHBE LR

mKﬁﬁE%'?%t@4%Jw
BB (BERARFIEET
Hx$7.87%>7$§§ﬁ °

BUSRATERER LR

R AR 1220024 71 81 2 R X S 174t
SN - B2 EAEER+ ZEA
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BROES BIPTER 2 B (R
B BITERRARITE ZBR
)T ATTE - BT RBHETZ
Bty ERAEBBLNHNARRD
BITRAS ©
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b) Participants (continued)

(c)

(d)

120

(b) any person or entity that provides research, development

or other technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services in respect of

business operations to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to, or

(d) any customer of goods or services of,

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or a
company controlled by a controlling shareholder.

For the purposes of the 2002 Scheme, the participants shall
include any company controlled by one or more persons belonging
to any of the above classes of participants.

Maximum number of ordinary shares available for issue

A total of 49,494,760 ordinary shares is available for issue which
represents approximately 7.87% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of ordinary shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of share options granted under the 2002 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company to any
participant (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding share
options), in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the ordinary shares in issue unless otherwise
approved in accordance with the terms of the 2002 Scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2009

31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(e)

®

(g)

(h)

121

Period within which the ordinary shares must be taken up
under a share option

Within ten years from the date of grant of the share option or such
shorter period as the board of directors of the Company determines
at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which a share option must be held
before it can be exercised

At the time of granting a share option, the board of directors of the
Company will determine the minimum period(s), if any, for which
a share option must be held before it can be exercised.

Amount payable upon acceptance of a share option and the
period within which the payment must be made

An offer for the grant of a share option must be accepted within
forty-five days inclusive of the day on which the offer was made.
The amount payable on acceptance of the offer for an option is
HK$1.00.

Basis of determining the exercise price of the share options

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a share
option shall be determined by the board of directors of the
Company and shall be no less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer of grant, which must be a business day;

(ii) the average closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer

of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share.

2 HESEEAT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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—EEHE=ZA=+—H 31 March 2009
31.IBRHEE) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(i) 2002FtBIR T 2B (i) Remaining life of the 2002 Scheme
BRARIE2002F 5T AR BT 45 R The 2002 Scheme has a life of ten years and will expire on 23
Gh - 2002 T Bl 2 BRUFEH AT August 2012 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the
F o WEBR—_ZE——FENA-+= terms of the 2002 Scheme.
HIEm °
T AR FERNIBIE2002F 5181 HE The following share options were outstanding under the 2002 Scheme
B ARTTE 2 BEARAE - during the year:
Bl
SEANZBERER @
Name or category of BREHE RAB&H TSR Exercise price
participants Number of share options Date of grant* Exercise period per share**
RZZZNE  ERRH  FREE FAXE KIBBAE
mA—-A Granted Exercised  Fofeited =A=1+-H
At 1 April during during during At 31 March
2008 the year the year the year 2009
(B/R/%) (B/R/%) AT
(DIMFY) (DIMFY) HK$
EEQIERR
Directors or substantial
shareholders
gz
Chen CHIANG 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1988
BB
Lai Yuen CHIANG 668,000 - (668,000) - - 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.988
EEE
Chi Kin CHIANG 334,000 - - - 334,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1988
EWR 332,000 - - - 332,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2004 - 10/3/2013 1.988
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG 334,000 - - - 334,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1988
666,000 - - - 666,000
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—EFENEFE=A=+—H 31 March 2009
3l.BREE) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
&R
SEAZBERER g
Name or category of el HE R A& MR Exercise price
participants Number of share options Date of grant* Exercise period per share**
R-BEN\E  FARE  FAEIR  EREN RZEIAE
MA—A Granted Brercised  Fofeited =A=1+-H
At 1 April during during during At 31 March
2008 the year the year the year 2009
(B/R/%) (B/R/%) BT
(DIMY) (DIMAY) HK$
5%
Sam Hon Wah NG 334,000 - - - 334,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2009 - 10/3/2013 1.988
EEREERLA
Chen Hsong Investments
Limited 600,000 - (600,000) - - 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.988
/T Subotal 3,602,000 - (2,268,000) - 1,334,000
8 (RESH)
Employees (other than directors)
A 10,000 - - - 10,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2004 - 10/3/2013 1.988
In aggregate 24,000 - - - 24,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2006 - 10/3/2013 1.988
578,000 - (338,0000  (10,000) 230,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.988
110,000 - - (10,000) 100,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2009 - 10/3/2013 1.988
/&t Subtotal 722,000 - (338,000 (20,000) 364,000
{5 Total 4,324,000 - (26060000 (20,0000 1,698,000
123
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the
commencement of the exercise period.

**  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

Notes:

(1) The closing price of the ordinary shares on 11 March 2003 was
HK$1.98 per share.

(2) The weighted average closing prices of the shares in which the share
options were exercised during the year by the participants of the 2002
Scheme were as follows:

IREF W E

Weighted average closing prices
BETEHAI—X RiTER
Immediately before On the date
SHEAZEESRER Name or category of participants the date of exercise of exercise
JEH JBH
HK$ HK$
BE Chen CHIANG 3.82 3.69
L) Lai Yuen CHIANG 2.83 2.83
EHIRERR AR Chen Hsong Investments Limited 3.82 3.69
BB (BREEIN Employees (other than directors) 3.78 3.68

IRIF2002F 5 B S H X HBREZR
BRBHELOOTT °

W R EEI0 R - FR
2,606,000 fi# i JE 1T~ B 3
772,606,000 & A% [ 18 /8 ¥0.10
TARRBEBBRRERFAETX
B2 A0 B AR 49 78 #260,0007T M
1% 17 % 1B 4976 % 4,920,0007T °

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009

(3) The share options granted under the 2002 Scheme are for a
consideration of HK$1.00 per grant.

(4) The 2,606,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the
issue of 2,606,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company
and new share capital of approximately HK$260,000 and share
premium of approximately HK$4,920,000 (before issue expenses), as
detailed in note 30 to the financial statements.
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31.EBREE) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

B5) RZZBEZNF=A=1+—H XRARR
1520024 51 81 51,608,000f ( — T =
J\EF + 4,324,0000% ) B AR A i R AT o
W AT 2 BB = BT T - (RN
NEVRE 2 ERERE - BeBTEN
1,698,0000% & i% F B & #0.1070 2 &
AR RIERGT AT AAEERGETZE
AT AN RS AN 4978 #5170,0007T K AR 17 34
B #978%3,206,0007T, °

32.f#%fE

AR

A EEREE LB FE R R
(LREA ERRBREH 25 -

BIEBERRE  DBEBROERA
B K B AR R % 1 B PR A B 78 8 — 56
DRB BN ERE TR 2 B
B - EEZEARBEERZARER
BO%ES + BIAR ¥ B FTER « MR &
I BER AR IR EEIE - K=
TNE=ZA=1+—8  %BARRELE
#38,535000L ( ZE T NF : BE
37,894,0007T ) °

RIEFEHI HBELERTIEER
BREEN - RRABRPEAE2E
T B R R A B D IR M EETE
(L BRI R 2R EE%
RiEBRIERREEHAMEAR0%

(5) As at 31 March 2009, the Company had 1,698,000 (2008: 4,324,000)
share options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme. The exercise in full of
the share options outstanding would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 1,698,000 additional ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company, and additional share capital
of approximately HK$170,000 and share premium of approximately
HK$3,206,000 (before issue expenses).

32. RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

In accordance with the Company Law of Taiwan, Asian Plastic
Machinery Company, Limited and Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan
Company, Limited are required to transfer a portion of their profits after
tax to a capital reserve, which is non-distributable. When the capital
reserve has accumulated to 50% of their capital, up to 50% of the
capital reserve may be capitalized. The capital reserve may be utilized
at any time to offset any deficit. As at 31 March 2009, such capital
reserve amounted to HK$38,535,000 (2008: HK$37,894,000).

In accordance with the Law of the PRC on Sole Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, certain of
the Company’s Mainland China subsidiaries are required to transfer a
portion of their profit after tax to the statutory reserve fund, which are
restricted as to use, until the accumulated total reaches 50% of their
registered capital.
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32. @& (#&) 32. RESERVES (continued)
BHB EXEE
RERR &
Share Capital EXRfFE HREEF

VNN Company premium redemption Capital Retained st
(BEFr) (HK$'000) account reserve reserve profits Total
RZEFT-FEA—H At 1 April 2007 498,308 295 2,623 150,903 652,129
REE 5 F Profit for the year - - — 235,742 235,742
BT (M17230) Issue of new shares (note 30) 3,146 - - - 3,146
VAR #2157 Y Equity-settled share option

R arrangements - - 252 - 252
HEZZTTLF Final dividend for the

—A=+—H1t year ended

FEZRERE 31 March 2007 - - - (100,055) (100,055)
T EARR BT 13) Interim dividend (note 13) - - - (50,087)  (50,087)
RZEZENF At 31 March 2008

=A=+—8k and 1 April 2008

—EEN\FWHA—H 501,454 295 2,875 236,503 741,127
REE T Profit for the year - - - 11,099 11,099
BATHRR (M12£30) Issue of new shares (note 30) 4,920 - - - 4,920
VARG #E 2 1 /9 Equity-settled share option

fER L arrangements - - 29 - 29
HE_ZTZTN\F Final dividend for the

—A=+—81t year ended

FEIRERE 31 March 2008

(H1a£13) (note 13) - - - (109,417) (109,417)
T EARR B (AT 13) Interim dividend (note 13) - - - (12577)  (12,577)
RZZETNF

=B=+—H At 31 March 2009 506,374 295 2,904 125,608 635,181

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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33.RAREE 33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

REER AR RERER A As at the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided for in
BENT the financial statements were as follows:
rEE NS
Group Company
(E%Fir) (HK$'000) 2009 2008 2009 2008
RETETE=FEEM Guarantees given to financial
RELTBEED institutions in connection with
FER - &REE facilities granted to certain
third parties, at the maximum 91,329 91,133 - -
MR THEABEEM  Guarantees given to banks in
RELRITEER connection with facilities
granted to subsidiaries - - 757,799 786,664
91,329 91,133 757,799 786,664

RZZEZNF=RA=+—H  ARAIg
RTMEB AR EEMRHRARITAHER
EfEMEEREL /B E39,012,0007T

—TT)\F : jB%30,014,0007T ) °

As at 31 March 2009, the guarantees given by the Company to banks
in connection with facilities granted to subsidiaries were utilized to the
extent of approximately HK$39,012,000 (2008: HK$30,014,000).

34.7%4E 34.COMMITMENTS
RZEBEEANF=ZA=1+—"H £A&EH As at 31 March 2009, the Group had capital commitments, which
RATA A A B K PRI 2 T 3 EEY) - was contracted but not provided for, in respect of the construction of

BHVBRBE 2 EARERES LGB
#35914,000C( —EZ N\ F: B
22,187,0007T) °

E‘;

RN_ZBTNF=ZA=+—H  ~5E#@
RRPBERERBEZWE  BFE &R
- ERNERBBZERERESHY
778 %26,780,0007T ( ZZFN\F : %
#26,531,0007T ) °

RZBTNF=ZA=1+—8 A2
BEAAE(ZZZENF &) -

industrial buildings in Mainland China amounting to approximately
HK$35,914,000 (2008: HK$22,187,000).

As at 31 March 2009, the Group had capital commitments, which were
contracted but not provided for, in respect of the purchase of property,
plant and equipment in Mainland China amounting to approximately
HK$26,780,000 (2008: HK$26,531,000).

As at 31 March 2009, the Company had no significant commitments
(2008: Nil).

127 R HESEEAT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED



B 95 2R 3R MY =E

—ZEEAF=A=+—H

35 EALRS

FR - BRARB B B A M T PR ER Y
BRSN  REEEBATHEEATR
5

(a) ANEBAEES4,924,0007T ( —F
T\ B H52,459,0007T ) [H—
65 X B LA TE S (LB PR T IR 4 2 AR
WEREGEEERMR -

SN REBMEA—FEAR B
BARKORYDBRAR (BBR
1) LAMEE T #12,033,0007T
ZET)\F : F¥21,238,0007T)
BERME - FR - RS MARN
SEZFERERS -

BEBLLBERELE(ZARAE
RAZEF)RREFALIHE
A BHEHEREZAERQFMR
RARE L80% <X FHE - HNER
BEXERAAZEHRARZRIN
PIARE RIS E R A RE 2
BAT - U ERFRIANEEEZ
ERE QRIS AR Z B RN
HETT e
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group also had the following related party transactions during the
year:

(a) The Group purchased raw materials amounting to HK$54,924,000
(2008: HK$52,459,000) from an associate at prices and on terms
similar to those offered by unrelated suppliers of the Group.

In addition, the Group purchased raw materials of HK$12,033,000
(2008: HK$21,238,000) from a related company, Zhenjian Mould
& Machinery (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“CC-SZ”). These
transactions were also continuing connected transactions of the
Group during the year.

Dr. Chen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, two directors of
the Company, and their associates together control the exercise
of 80% of the voting power at general meetings of Chen Chien
Holdings Limited, which holds the entire equity interest of CC-SZ.
CC-SZ is therefore a related company of the Group. The terms
of the above transactions were conducted with prices and terms
mutually agreed by the Group and the related company.
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31 March 2009

Notes to Financial Statements

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

REE Group

(BBTFor) (HK$'000) 2009 2008

EHE BTE A Short term employee benefits 11,258 27,617

ZIRI1ERA Post-employment benefits 48 48

VARG S (T ROBSREMEE A Equity-settled share option expenses 21 206
11,327 27,871

FARESHENFAER D RIS
R ETOHT -

36. 2R T AESE

REER - TR/ T A REE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

the financial statements.

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

Ul as at the balance sheet date are as follows:
TREE Financial assets
2009 2008
AHEE AL E
SREE EXK SREE B3k
Available-for ~ FEWRFIE Available-for  [EMFIE
F5E Group sale financial  Loans and #3it  salefinancial  Loansand e
(BETT) (HK$'000) assets  receivables Total assets  receivables Total
AftHEERRE  Avallable-forsale equity investments 124,057 - 124,057 124,057 - 124,057
JEUW—E2 N RIRT  Amount due from an associate - - - - 43 43
JENE SR EER Trade and bills receivables - 516,082 516,082 - 874324 874324
2AEE  BRFUE  Financial assets included
R E A FEUR AR R in deposits, prepayments
HEREE and other receivables - 30,050 30,050 - 26,251 26,251
JEUAIt B ERZ  Dividend receivable from an
KRERE available-for-sale equity investment - - - - 37,800 37,800
ReRFITHTT Cash and bank balances - 445590 445590 - 361,744 361744
124,057 991,722 1,115,779 124,057 1,300,162 1,424,219
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

36. 2B TESEE) 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)
E =i Financial liabilities
DB RATEZ
sRER
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
AEE Group
(GEMFor) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
JEXRE NG Amounts due to associates - 10,745
JENE 5 REBRR Trade and bills payables 276,572 410,373
SEAE A FETER SR Financial liabilities included
LEGTRENSREaE in other payables and accruals 47,105 37,813
IRITER - EIEH Bank loans, unsecured 37,864 27,814
361,541 486,745
ERMEE Financial assets
B R ERRIE
Loans and receivables
VNN Company
(EEFor) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
[ NGIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,033,946 1,011,533
AR & Financial assets included
HAth E YRR in deposits and
Mo RVEE other receivables 725 915
BWe MIE1ITHEE Cash and bank balances 4,574 4,490
1,039,245 1,016,938
sRIEE Financial liabilities
DB R AT EZ
sRAas
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
b /N Company
(GEEFIT) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
FEASTBfT 88 2~ J]BR 3R Amounts due to subsidiaries 509,513 367,254

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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37.¢REAREEEERBE 37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

AEETESHMTABRERRE RIRITHE
7 BWE S REERR - HibEKER
R EBNESRFEEERER - HMEME
FARIRITER »

mAEES BT ARELN TSRS
PRS- SERR - SRR RS
ESER - AEELREBEANFIER,
B - BRZS S BT ANERRRER
SEBNBERNTY - EEEEER
EmPE AR - AR R B
T N -

FRER

AEEFEHNOTSENEEG R ER
EAREENTERITERARH - A%E
ERERANXRR  EHEEAME
RERE - &F ERIUEEAR KA BEE

G o
2

S LR

REBNINERRBERELRS - O
BOBERAR - LRAREAERS
BEIHFRE o

REBBINERZ ZRER - ZFERIRR
REBAIDHEMFRER S 2
EARARERRS5EY - EEEREE
ERINERR  MERE - SEELP
EARINE R o

REBUSENTREE - ARER
BEREINERR o ERHBEIAEER
REABZENAREIHE -

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and bank
balances, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables and bank loans.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group had insignificant interest rate risk. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely
and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans carrying floating interest
rates. The Group monitors its interest rate exposure closely and
considers to take measures to reduce significant interest rate exposure,
if any.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk arises from commercial transactions,
recognized assets and liabilities and net investments in operations in
Mainland China and Taiwan.

The Group has transactional currency risk exposures. Such risk
exposures arise from a substantial portion of the Group’s sales and
purchases transactions denominated in United States dollars (“US$”)
and Renminbi (“RMB”). Management closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group reduces the foreign currency risk exposure on its investments
in Taiwan with appropriate levels of borrowings in New Taiwan dollars.
Whereas the investments in Mainland China will benefit from the
appreciation of RMB.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the balance sheet
date to a reasonably possible change in US$ and RMB exchange rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) and
the Group’s equity.

SNEE=R BRBE AT 3R

®mOmd) S CRA) =
Increase/ Increase/ 30, (E4)

(decrease) (decrease) Increase/

in foreign in profit (decrease)

(BEFr) (HK$'000) currency rate (%) before tax in equity*
2009

WA REEETTHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 46,396 -

M ARSI E If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (46,396) -

M AREEHETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% 10,045 -

M AREHETRZE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) (10,045) -
2008

M AREH B TIHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 43,417 -

WA REE BT (E If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (43,417) -

W ARBEHETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% 9,294 -

MAREHETRE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) (9,294) -

* AEREREET

FERR

EERR  EXERENRZH T TR
EETEEEMSAKERANRZTG
1BRHIRTRENE -

FEH&%Z%HE REE AT BB R IR

ELEERER - N REEE
El  AEEERZSEERESEBKD
A EIRRE - LARBRET KB FIEE
TE R HRERIE - MUt - NEBAR
BRI ERK °

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009

* Excluding retained earnings

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty of a
transaction is unwilling or unable to fulfill its obligation and the Group
thereby suffers a financial loss.

The credit limits of trade receivables are determined and monitored by
management on an ongoing basis. In addition, at each balance sheet
date, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
unrecoverable amounts. Therefore, the Group’s exposure to impairment
is not significant.
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37.cREAREEEERBEE) 37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

FERRE)

AEEEBeREE(BRAS MRS
FEMHNEERRIERETHELD
1R EeARBREERZETANKE
8 - ARE AR FRHE BIERT
EEMNEERR - BREFISCHNITHE
PFE33 -

HRAKER SRR G EENEP
X5 WEFERREHER - KHEE
RBRER, /XS TTHETER - REE
I NFHEBASFEERR -

BRAEERKESERMELNEE
R — S EIERER - SEHRT R
FRMEE23

RBETERE

AEBRBAERABDESTETE - X
EREETERNEAR -2 TAZEE
ERMTAMN : BNESREEERF) &
TRMEEMN  BRE S REERFON
A RBALERERE -

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, arises from default of the counterparty
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Group is also exposed to credit risk through the
granting of financial guarantees, further details of which are disclosed
in note 33 to the financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy parties,
there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk
are managed by customer/counterparty. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 23 to the
financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments (e.g. trade and bills payables) and financial
assets (e.g. trade and bills receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2009

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

follows:

37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the balance
sheet date, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, was as

2009
=@RzE
+=@A
More than 3
=@AR months and
AEH Group Less than 3 less than 12 st
CEETFT) (HK$'000) months months Total
JERTE 5 REBIREN Trade and bills payables 271,459 5113 276,572
A A BT BRI Financial liabilities included in
ErtAENsREBE other payables and accruals 47,105 - 47,105
RITER - EIRAE Bank loans, unsecured 37,864 - 37,864
356,428 5,113 361,541
2008
=@ERZE
+=—@A
More than 3
=@BARA months and
AEH Group Less than 3 less than 12 st
(E#For) (HK$'000) months months Total
FEH R A ER K Amounts due to associates 10,745 - 10,745
BB S REEERER Trade and bills payables 410,373 - 410,373
SO AE MR AR AR Financial liabilities included in
ErtAENeREaE other payables and accruals 37,813 - 37,813
RITER - |IEA Bank loans, unsecured 27814 - 27,814
486,745 - 486,745

4E#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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37.

38.

39.

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2009

SRIEMREEEERBRE) 37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

FEBESRK(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
=EARN
Less than 3 months
b NN Company
(BMFor) (HK$'000) 2009 2008
FEAH B A BIBR K Amounts due to subsidiaries 509,513 367,254
ERER Capital management

FEEEREENEEE EAREARE
BT 0t BARSSAEFEE A AR by
% SRR RAR IR
HH o

IR BR B EAN O B EY 1 B IE N
BHEEARRE - BRFAFABREARR
B AEEHEHABKTRRARE -
FRREEEARSEITHR - BE-F
ENF=A=T—HBEZZTZENF=A
=T RULEFERN ZEFEAEHRZA
RAR 7 I B AR -

OH]

=l

BESN - AN SR Y55 i85 R B B B IR
(@RS EERERBDEE EEE
Ko REBZBRBEFDFREDEE

+
I%EI R ©

L&

ETHRESRDEWENIE  ARLE
REFZZ2HIA -

PR

HHBHRRER -_FZTAFLATEAE
REEREL -

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and make adjustments to
it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2008.

In addition, the Group monitors capital using the position of net current
assets, which is total current assets minus total current liabilities. The
Group’s policy is to maintain a positive balance of the net current
assets.

38.COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation.

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by
the board of directors on 14 July 2009.
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Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2009

excessive length.

i3I AV
REE
Place of
incorporation/

B#T
BRAMEE
BYER

Nominal value of

ARAFE
REFD

Percentage of

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

7B registration issued share/  equity attributable FTEEK
Name and operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
B#ERE

Held indirectly

TR AR AT
Asian Plastic Machinery
Company, Limited

EHEKBR R
ORI AR AR D

Chen Hsong CAD CAM
(Shenzhen) Company,
Limited

EENBERRBERAR
Chen Hsong Finance and
Management Services Limited

BHTEE ORI
BRAR®

Chen Hsong Industrial Park
(Shenzhen) Company,
Limited ¥

EEDRHERRAF

Chen Hsong Logistics Services
Company Limited

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009

N

A=
Taiwan
HE B K RE

PRC/Mainland China

b
Hong Kong

B B AR
PRC/Mainland China

Bk
Hong Kong

136

R

Ordinary

18 150,000,0007T
NT$50,000,000

%%2,100,0007T
US$2,100,000

ik
Ordinary
BT
HK$2

5%$4,000,0007T
US$4,000,000

TRBBE2T
Ordinary HK$2
BEREERTR, ©
7&#5,000,0007T

Non-voting deferred ©

HK$5,000,000

100

100

100

100

100

SHE T B

Sale of

plastic injection
moulding machines

FERHERRIER
Manufacture and sale
of precision moulds

RS R E IR RS
Provision of financial
and management
services

REYE
Property holding

REYIRFE RS
Provision of
logistics services



FEWMBRE
N_EEAF=A=+—H
g

Name

Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2009

3 o7
BEE N
Place of BWEX

incorporation/ Nominal value of

registration issued share/

and operations paid-up capital

ERRAFE
REESL
Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

FEEK

Principal activities

BiERE (8)
Held indirectly (continued)

EIERBFARAR
Chen Hsong Machinery
Company, Limited

EHEERME R
BRAR®

Chen Hsong Machinery
Equipment (Shenzhen)
Company, Limited @

B, (E5) ARAFO

Chen Hsong Machinery
(Ningbo) Company,
Limited ©

B ORI BR AR O

Chen Hsong Machinery
(Shenzhen) Company,
Limited ©

RIERER O BR AR
Chen Hsong Machinery
Taiwan Company, Limited

BT EARRAR
Chen Hsong Precision Mould
Company Limited

5 LB

Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
EREERTRH

75 #50,000,0007T

Non-voting deferred®

HK$50,000,000

Bl B AR 7#5%#24,000,0007T
PRC/Mainland China HK$24,000,000
A B KR %48,010,0007C
PRC/Mainland China US$8,010,000

HR B/ B K e
PRC/Mainland China

%417,130,0007C
US$17,130,000

=) Tk
Taiwan Ordinary
#1A1165,000,0007T
NT$165,000,000
BB TiEk
Hong Kong Ordinary
B4 410,0007T
HK$4,410,000

137

100

100

100

100

100

100

THET

Sale of

plastic injection
moulding machines

FUE RIHE M
Manufacture and sale
of tie bars

SUENHE T B
Manufacture and sale
of plastic injection
moulding machines

BUE N HE T
Manufacture and sale
of plastic injection
moulding machines

SUERHE LB
Manufacture and sale
of plastic injection
moulding machines

HEREEA
Sale of
precision moulds
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Name

Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2009

EEaio AV
ReEHE
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

28T
RAmEE,
BHRER
Nominal value of
issued share/
paid-up capital

ERRAFE
BEESL
Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

FEEK

Principal activities

BiERE (8)
Held indirectly (continued)

B O BRARO

Chen Hsong Sales & Marketing
(Shenzhen) Company,
Limited ©

BHMBARAT
Chen Hsong Technology Limited

BRG BRI R
BEEENERARLE @
Chen Ning Plastics Machinery

Company, Limited @

LT IREEE BRI R
WRAR AR

Foshan Shunde Chen De
Plastics Machinery
Company Limited @

BT IR R R = 28k
WRAR AR

Foshan Shunde Chen De No. 3
Plastics Machinery
Company, Limited "

BT IRTE R B R
BRAR®

Foshan Shunde Chen De
Precision Machinery
Company, Limited

4£#t ANNUAL REPORT 2009

B B A RE
PRC/Mainland China

o
Hong Kong

B B A RE
PRC/Mainland China

B B A RE
PRC/Mainland China

B B A RE
PRC/Mainland China

B B A RE
PRC/Mainland China

138

75%10,000,0007C
HK$10,000,000

il
Ordinary
AT

HK$2

AK#5,000,0007T
RMB5,000,000

%45,200,0007T
US$5,200,000

%4 2,100,0007T
US$2,100,000

%47,900,0007T
US$7,900,000

100

100

100

100

100

100

SHE T

Sale of

plastic injection
moulding machines

THET R

Sale of

plastic injection
moulding machines

SUERRE T B
Manufacture and sale
of plastic injection
moulding machines

SUENMHE T
Manufacture and sale
of plastic injection
moulding machines

SBENMHE T
Manufacture and sale
of plastic injection
moulding machines

SBENMHE T
Manufacture and sale
of plastic injection
moulding machines



FTEMWB AR Principal Subsidiaries
RZZETZNF=R=+—H As at 31 March 2009
AL 28T
REHE RAEE ERRAFE
Place of BEWRER REESLL
incorporation/ Nominal value of Percentage of
g registration issued share/  equity attributable FEEHK
Name and operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities

BiERE (8)
Held indirectly (continued)

BT IREEE B RE R B A RE % 43,000,0007T 100 SUENHERESE
BRAFO PRC/Mainland China US$3,000,000 Manufacture and sale

Intra-Italy Hydraulics of hydraulic motors
(Foshan Shunde)
Company, Limited (¥

RYIBERE TR R B A RE %£12,000,0007T 100 SBENHERM
BRAF@ PRC/Mainland China US$12,000,000 Manufacture and sale

Shenzhen Chen Hsong Precision of casting parts

Equipment Limited @

Witk

Notes:

() ERERIEEERSE

(1) These companies are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

(2) HEARABFINGELEDRE - (2) These companies are sino-foreign equity joint ventures.
(3) MIZFRERIENL D B X PR 4 A UCHR A% (3) The non-voting deferred shares carry limited rights to dividends, no rights to

B EBRERRAE LRENAXREI
RN BRI BEE AR 2 BER -

vote at general meetings and limited rights to receive any surplus in a return of
capital in a winding-up.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority interests

of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published

audited financial statements, is set out below.

RESULTS
Year ended 31 March

(E¥Tr) (HK$'000) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Yz Revenue 1,603,107 2,316,136 2,155,014 1,955,334 1,867,483
R T Profit from operating activities 107,134 342,263 337,352 306,418 291,441
AR A Finance costs (4,668) (4,419) (2,387) (7,139) (4,748)
il d=y/NG Share of profits less losses
SR e R of associates 1,386 1,130 2,159 (185) (1,821)
BREL AR A Profit before tax 103,852 338,974 337,124 299,094 284,872
BiE Tax (16,700) (18,129) (24,833) (26,826) (22,408)
REE G F Profit for the year 87,152 320,845 312,291 272,268 262,464
SHEN: Attributable to:
RNARIEZFEBA  Equity holders of the Company 85,786 317,829 312,276 272,450 259,386
DHREER Minority interests 1,366 3,016 15 (182) 2578
87,152 320,845 312,291 272,268 262,464
BEE - BERVERRER ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS
R=A=1+—H As at 31 March
(CEETor) (HK$'000) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
BERE Total assets 2,885,343 3,118,939 2,661,539 2,477,621 2,298,535
BEpE Total liabilities (533,189) (726,035) (576,194) (630,881) (599,496)
DEEEER Minority interests (13,683) (12,041) (7,967) (7,483) (26,619)
2,338,471 2,380,863 2,077,378 1,839,257 1,672,420
140
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